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HSBC Private Bank (UK) Limited

Strategic report

Principal activities
HSBC Private Bank (UK) Limited ('the Entity') is a private company incorporated in England and Wales, United
Kingdom. Its trading address is 8 Canada Square, London E14 SHQ.

HSBC Private Bank (UK) Limited is an authorised bank under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000,
authorised by the Prudential Regulation Authority (‘PRA') and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority
('FCA'). The Entity's principal activity is private banking. -

The Entity's products and services include: investment management, incorporating advisory, discretionary and
brokerage services; private wealth solutions comprising trust and estate planning; and a full range of private
bank services. :

Review of the Entity's business

As part of the HSBC Group the entity leverages, the strength of HSBC Group and the most suitable products
from the marketplace, to provide our clients with solutions to grow, manage and preserve wealth for today
and for the future. The Entity continues to simplify and improve the way it conducts its business, including
complying with HSBC Global Standards (financial crime compliance measures and controls), customer due
diligence and tax transparency standards.

During 2017, the Entity continued to make satisfactory progress delivering on the strategic decisions to
reposition the Entity. Over the past year the Entity has continued to grow assets under management and
associated revenues in its target client base. In line with strategy this has been driven by an increase in
referrals from existing HSBC Group clients. Part of the Entity’s repositioning has seen a reduction of assets
under management from customers in non-core markets and products.

In line with Group strategy and with Board approval, HSBC Private Bank (UK) Limited transferred 100% of its
subsidiary HSBC Private Bank (C.1) Limited to HSBC Bank Plc during the year to support the Group's ring-fenced
bank requirements.

Implementation and operationalisation of the ServCo group

HSBC Group has started making changes to its corporate structure to mitigate or remove critical inter-
dependencies to further facilitate the resolution of the Group. In particular, to remove operational
dependencies (where one subsidiary bank provides critical service to another), the Group is in the process of
transferring critical services from subsidiary banks to a separately incorporated group of service companies
('ServCo group'). :

In 2015 and 2016, to progress implementation, 315 employees performing shared services in the UK were
transferred from the Entity to the ServCo group, which is a subsidiary of HSBC Holdings plc. There were no
changes to employment terms and conditions or pension benefits as a result of these transfers.

Following the transfer of employees, the ServCo group in the UK has started providing services to the Entity.
From 1 July 2016, the Entity recognises a management charge. for the services provided by ServCo group
instead of staff compensation. The implementation process is expected to complete during 2018.

Performance
The Entity's results for the year under review are as detailed in the income statement shown on page 14 of
these financial statements.

Profit for the year in 2017 of £18,552,000 was 65% lower than in 2016 {(£54,598,000). Operating income before
loan impairment charges and other credit risk provision was £176,302,000 in 2017, 18% lower than 2016
(£214,202,000). Net interest income is lower by £18,737,000 versus 2016 primarily driven by lower interest
rates offset by a decrease in liquidity premiums on the deposit portfolio. The reduction in net fee income of
£20,406,000 is due to the transfer of the HSBC Global Asset Management’s discretionary wealth management
business segment out of the entity as part of the strategic restructuring of the group. In addition loan
impairments charges were £10,431,000 in 2017 versus a recovery of £5,854,000 in 2016. This was driven by a
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single loan impairment related to a legacy lending relationship within the portfolio that is being exited.
Operating expenses in 2017 were £140,132,000, a 3% decrease versus 2016 (£144,929,000), with a continued -
reallocation of expenses between employee compensation and administrative expenses driven by the
operationalisation of the Servco Group.

Business Position

Assets were £7,011,119,000 in December 2017 versus £6,243,641,000 in December 2016, a 12% increase. This
was due to an increase from £855,429,000 as at December 2016 to £2,438,975,000 as at December 2017 of
intercompany lending to the Group. Liabilities were £6,407,362,000 as at December 2017 versus
£5,530,415,000 as at December 2016, a 16% increase. The primary driver of the liability increase is the 13%
growth in customer accounts from £5,368,164,000 in 2016 to £6,045,228,000 in 2017.

Total equity of the Entity decreased by £109,469,000 to £603,757,000 at 31 December 2017 (31 December
2016: £713,226,000) mainly due to the payment of dividends during the year (£128,000,000).

Total Assets under management (including cash deposits) has increased to £9,080,113,000 at 31 December
2017 (31 December 2016: £6,728,816,000). This increase is in line with the Entity’s strategy to build a more
balanced portfolio of wealth management products.

Key performance indicators

The Directors use Key Performance Indicators ('KPI's) to monitor the business. As well as the income statement
and the balance sheet, these indicators include measures to identify the returns on different categories of
assets and the risks to which the Entity is exposed.

Financial KPIs

2017 2016
Profit before tax (£'000) A 25,739 75,127
Total Risk-Weighted Assets (£'000) 2,118,847 2,272,064
Pre-tax return on risk-weighted assets (%) 1% 3%
Common equity tier 1 (%) 28% 29%
Cost efficiency ratio (%) ) 79% 68%
Ratio of customer advances to customer accounts (%) 1.04 1.34

Profit before tax of £25,739,000 in 2017 was 66% lower than in 2016 (£75,127,000). The main drivers being a
lower interest rate environment leading to lower net interest income and the single impairment of a legacy
‘lending relationship. T o

Pre-tax return on average risk-weighted assets is measured as pre-tax profit divided by average risk weighted
assets. The reduction from 3% in 2016 to 1% in 2017 was driven by a profit reduction as risk-weighted assets
remained stable.

Core tier 1 capital comprises shareholders' equity and non-controlling interest less regulatory deductions and
adjustments. The Entity maintains a capital base of 28% in 2017.to support the development of its business
and meet regulatory capital requirements at all times.

Cost efficiency is measured as total operating expenses divided by operating income before loan impairment
and other credit risk provisions. Cost efficiency reduced driven by the lower revenues.

Ratio of customer advances to customer accounts comprises loans and advances to customers as a ratio of the:
total core customer deposits. The lower the percentage, the stronger the funding position. The reduction from
1.34 in 2016 to 1.04 in 2017 reflects the continued strong growth in customer accounts in line with the
continued growth in Assets under management (including cash deposits) as the entity builds a more balanced
portfolio of wealth products.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The principal financial risks and uncertainties facing the Entity are credit risk, market risk, and liquidity risk.
These risks, the exposure to such risks and management of risk are set out in Note 29 of the financial
statements.
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The most important non-financial types of risk are operational risk, conduct and regulatory risk, including
Financial Crime compliance, reputational risk and cyber risk. The Directors have put in place procedures to
monitor and manage these risks.

Operational risk is relevant to every aspect:of the Entity's business and covers a wide spectrum of issues.
Losses arising from fraud, unauthorised activities, errors omission, inefficiency, systems failure or from
external events all falt within the definition of operational risk. The objective of the Entity's operational risk
management is to manage and control operational risk in a cost effective manner within targeted levels of
operational risk consistent with the Entity's risk appetite, as proposed by the Risk Management Committee set
by the Board.

Regulators in the UK and other countries have continued to increase their focus on 'conduct’ matters relating
to fair outcomes for customers and orderly/transparent markets, including, for example, attention to sales
processes and incentives, products and investment suitability, product governance, employee activities and
accountabilities. '

In the UK, the FCA is making increasing use of existing and new powers of intervention and enforcement,
including powers to consider past business undertaken and implement customer compensation and redress
schemes or other, potentially significant, remedial work. The FCA is also regulating areas of activity not
previously regulated by them, such as consumer credit, and considering competition issues in the markets they
regulate. Additionally, the FCA increasingly take actions in response to customer complaints or where they see
poor customer outcomes and/or market abuses, either specific to an institution or more generally in relation
to a particular product.

Financia! service providers face increasingly stringent and costly regulatory and supervisory requirements,
particularly in the areas of capital and liquidity management, conduct of business, operational structures and
the integrity of financial services delivery. Increased government intervention and control over financial
institutions may significantly alter the competitive landscape.

The Entity maintains a strong compliance culture and monitors the regulatory environment closely to react
proactively to changes and reduce risks to the business.

Like other public and private organisations, the Entity continues to be a target of cyber-attacks, which in some
cases, the intention of these attacks are to disrupt services including the availability of the Entity's external
facing websites, compromise organisations and customer information or expose security weaknesses.
Management of cyber risks is coming under increased regulatory scrutiny.

The security of the Entity's information and technology infrastructure is crucial for maintaining the Entity's

banking application process and protecting the Entity's customers and the HSBC brand.

On behalf of the Board

C D Allen
Director

20 February 2018

8 Canada Square
London E14 5HQ
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Directors

The Directors who served during the Year were as follows:

Name Appointed

J E Trueman 01 April 2013
CD Allen 20 August 2012
P Tremble - 27 March 2012
P W Boyles 18 April 2016

J R Paterson 03 October 2016
D Stewart 02 June 2016

The Articles of Association of the Entity provide that in certain circumstances the Directors are entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Entity against claims from third parties in respect of certain liabilities
arising in connection with the performance of their functions, in accordance with the provisions of the UK
Companies Act 2006. Indemnity provisions of this nature have been in place during the financial year but have
not been utilised by the Directors. All Directors have the benefit of Directors' and officers' liability insurance.

Dividends

A dividend was declared by the Directors during the year ended 31 December 2017 for £128,000,000 (2016:
£625,000,000)

Significant events since the end of the financial year

No significant events affecting the Entity have occurred since the end of the financial year.

Future developments

The Entity's activities are expected to be divisionalised as part of HSBC UK picin 2019.

Going concern basis

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Directors are satisfied that the Entity
has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. In making this assessment, the Directors
have considered a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions.

Financial risk management

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Entity, together with an analysis of the exposure
to such risks, as required under Part 1 of Schedule 7 of the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008, are set out in Note 29 of the Notes on the Financial Statements.
Employment of disabled persons

The Entity is committed to providing equal opportunities to employees. The employment of disabled persons
is included in this commitment and the recruitment, training, career development and promotion of disabled
persons is based on the aptitudes and abilities of the individual. Should employees become disabled during

employment, every effort would be made to continue their employment and, if necessary, appropriate
training would be provided.
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Employment policy

The Entity continues to regard communication with its employees as a key aspect of its policies. Information is
given to employees about employment matters and about the financial and economic factors affecting the
Entity's performance through management channels, oral communication and by way of attendance at
internal seminars and training programmes. Employees are encouraged to discuss operational and strategic
issues with their line management and to make suggestions aimed at improving performance. The
involvement of employees in the performance of the Entity: is further encouraged through a profit
participation scheme. ‘

Capital management [Audited]

The Entity defines capijcél as total shareholders' equity. It is Entity’s objective to maintain a strong capital base
to support the development of its business and to meet regulatory capital requirements at all times. There
were no changes to the Entity's approach to capital management during the year.

We manage our capital within the context of an annual capital plan which determines the optimal amount and
mix of capital required to support planned business growth and meet local regulatory capital requirements.

Pillar 3 of Basel regulatory framework is related to market discipline and aims to make firms more transparent
by requiring them to publish specific details of their risks and capital, and how these are managed. Separate
Pillar 3 disclosures are not required for the Entity as the Entity is included in the consolidated Pillar 3
disclosures of HSBC Bank plc. These disclosures are published as a separate document on HSBC Bank plc's
website.

The PRA is the supervisor of the Entity. The PRA sets capital requirements and receives information on the
capital adequacy of the Entity. Noting the exception in January 2017 in respect to large exposure limits, the
Entity complied with the PRA’s capital adequacy requirements throughout 2017. Since 1 January 2014, our
capital is calculated under CRD IV and supplemented by the PRA Rulebook to effect the transposition of CRD IV
directive requirements. The Basel Ill framework, similarly to Basel Il, is structured around three 'pillars’:
minimum capital requirements, supervisory review process and market discipline. Basel Ill also introduces a
number of capital buffers, including the Capital Conservation Buffer ('CCB'), Countercyclical Capital Buffer
('CCyB'), and other systemic buffers such as the Globally/Other systemically Important Institutions ('G-Sil'/'O-
SII') buffer. CRD IV Legislation implemented Basel Il in the EU, and'in the UK, the 'PRA Rulebook' for CRR firms
transposed the various discretions under CRD IV legislation into UK requirements.

Regulatory capital

The Entity's capital base is divided into two main categories namely Common equity tier 1 and tier 2,
depending on the degree of permanency and loss absorbency exhibited.

s Common equity tier 1 capital is the highest quality form of capital, comprising shareholders' equity. Under
CRD IV various capital deductions which are treated differently for the purposes of capital adequacy -
these include negative amounts resulting from the calculation of expected loss amounts under IRB.

s Tier 2 comprises subordinated loans. Currently the Entity has no Tier 2 capital.
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The calculation of actual capital is shown below:

2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Tier 1 capital [Audited] :
Shareholders’ equity .- 603,757 713,226
Regulatory adjustments to the accounting basis
Deductions
- Excess expected losses over impairment allowances . : (18,387) (51,639).
Common equity tier 1 585,370 661,587
Deductions
- Unconsolidated investments - (220,598) -
Tier 1 capital . 585,370 440,989
Total regulatory capital 585,370 440,989
Risk-weighted assets [Not audited]’ .
Credit and counterparty risk 1,768,503 1,912,881
Market risk ‘ 3,844 4,059
Operational risk 346,500 355,124
Total 2,118,847 2,272,064
Capital ratios (%) :
Common equity tier 1 ratio : . 27.63 29.12
Tier 1 ratio 27.63 19.41
Total capital ratio 27.63 19.41

Independent Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ('PwC') is external auditors to the Entity. PwC has expressed its willingness to
continue in office and the Board recommends PwC be re-appointed as the Entity's auditors.
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. Under company law the directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Entity and of the profit or loss of the Entity for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the directors
are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; .

e state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

¢ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

o prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the Entity will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Entity's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Entity

and enable them to ensure that the financial statements and the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with
the Companies Act 2006.

The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Entity and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Entity’s website. Legislation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

The directors consider that the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Entity’s performance,
business model and strategy.

Each of the directors, whose names and functions are listed in Report of the Directors confirm that, to the best
of their knowledge: .

e the Entity financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit of
the Entity; and :

¢ the Strategic Report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and
the position of the Entity, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it
faces.

In the case of each director in office at the date the Directors’ Report is approved:
e sofar as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Entity’s auditors
are unaware; and
e they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Entity’s auditors are aware of that
information. g

CcD n

Director
20 February 2018
8 Canada Square London £14 5HQ
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Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, HSBC Private Bank (UK) Limited’s (‘the Entity’) financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the Entity’s affairs as at 31 December 2017 and of its profit
and cash flows for the year then ended;

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and

¢ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the
“Annual Report”), which comprise: the balance sheet as at 31 December 2017; the income statement, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of cash flows, the statement of changes in equity for the .
year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant
accounting policies.

Our opinion is consistent with our reporting to the Audit and Risk Committee.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“iSAs (UK)”) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under I1SAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, as applicable to public
interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services prohibited by the FRC’s Ethical
Standard were not provided to the Entity.

We have provided no non-audit services to the Entity in the period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017.

Our audit approach

Overview

Materiality . Overall materiality: £5.9m, based on 1% of Regulatory Capital
2016: £3.9 based on 5% of Profit before tax.

Audit scope e  The Entity comprises one legal entity in the UK.

Key audit matters . Impairment of loans and advances to customers.

. Litigation provisions relating to film finance transactions.
. IT Access management.

The scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in
the financial statements. In particular, we looked at where the directors made subjective judgements, for
example in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering
future events that are inherently uncertain.

We focused on laws and regulations that could give rise to a material misstatement in the Entity’s financial
statements, including but not limited to, the Companies Act 2006; the Financial Conduct Authority regulations -
and the Prudential Regulation Authority’s regulations. Our tests included, but were not limited to, inspecting
correspondence with regulators, discussions with legal counsel and testing of areas of significant risk.
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There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the further removed non-
compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements,
the less likely we would become aware of it. : :

We did not identify any key audit matters relating to irregularities, including fraud. As in all of our audits we
also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, inciuding testing journals and evaluating
whether there was evidence of bias by the directors that represented a risk of material misstatement due to
fraud.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of
material misstatement {whether or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had the
greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts
of the engagement team. These matters, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures
thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. This is not a complete list of all
risks identified by our audit.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Impairment of loans and advances to customers Our audit procedures in relation to impairment
tmpairment allowances represent the Entity’s best included:

estimate of the losses incurred within the loan . - Understanding and testing the controls.around
portfolios at the balance sheet date. They are the identification of impaired loans and the
calculated on a collective basis for portfolios of loans review, challenge and approval of key

of a similar nature and on an individual basis for judgements and assumptions;

significant loans. - Testing the controls over the annual loan review
The calculation of both collective and individual process, the compilation and review of the credit
impairment allowances is inherently judgemental for watch list, approval of external collateral

any bank. Collective impairment allowances are valuation vendors, approval of significant
calculated using models which approximate the individual impairments;

impact of current economic and credit conditionson . Jesting a sample of loans as at year end using a
large portfolios of loans. The inputs to these models risk-based sampling methodology directed at
are based on historical loss experience with those loans which we consider to represent the
judgement applied to determine the assumptions highest credit risk;

used to calculate impairment. For specific
impairments, judgement is required to determine
when an impairment event has occurred and then to

estimate the expected future cash flows related to - Testing collective impairment modelling policy,
that loan. ' methodology and model calculations as a basis

for estimating collective provisioning.

- Testing a sample of loans from the remaining
“good book”;

The audit was focused on impairment due to the .

subjective nature of the impairment calculations and ~ We are satisfied that our audit procedures have been

the relative size of the loans carried on the statement 2PPropriately planned and performed. We have

of financial position compared to materiality. found management’s judgements and assumptions to
be reasonable and appropriate.
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Litigation provisions relating to film finance
transactions

The determination of when and how to recognise
litigation provisions is highly judgemental and the
exposure of the banking industry to claims is high. In
prior years judgement has been required around the
exposure to claims made by parties in relation to film
financing transactions and these remain open in the
financial year ended 31 December 2017.

We have determined this to be an area of audit focus.

IT Access management

All banks are highly dependent on technology due to
the significant number of transactions that are
processed daily. The audit approach relies extensively
on automated controls and therefore on the
effectiveness of controls over IT systems.

It was identified that the entity’s controls over
individuals’ access rights to operating systems,
applications, and data used in the financial reporting
process required improvement. Access rights are

important as they ensure that changes to applications

and data are authorised and made in an appropriate
manner. Ensuring staff only have appropriate access,
and that the access is monitored, are key controls to
mitigate the potential for fraud or error as a result of
a change to an application or underlying data.

The results of our work show an improvement of
controls over infrastructure privileged access for
systems relevant to our audit. By the end of the audit
period, a number of controls had been implemented
and operated effectively in the latter part of the year
to address the critical operating system and database
related matters previously reported. Management
continue to progress the remaining issues including
several relating to the management of business
application access.

Our audit procedures in relation to film finance
related provisions included:

Understanding and testing of controls
around identification and assessment of current
legal and regulatory related provisions.

- Testing completeness of litigation and regulatory

' claims through: Inspecting regulatory
correspondence. Reviewing a sample of legal
expenses to test completeness of litigation.
Inspecting minutes of key governance meetings
including Board minutes, Audit and Risk
Committee minutes.

- Examining the case status for material open legal
cases, including inquiring with internal counsel,
and in certain instances, obtaining external legal
counsel confirmations, in order to understand
the legal provision and the basis of material risk
positions.

We are satisfied that our audit procedures have been
appropriately planned and performed. We have
found management’s judgements and assumptions to
be reasonable and appropriate.

-Our audit procedures in relation to IT access

management included:

Testing access rights for applications, operating

systems and databases relied upon for financial

reporting. Specifically, testing that:

- new access requests for joiners are properly
reviewed and authorised;

- user access rights are removed on a timely basis
when an individual leaves or moves role;
access rights to applications, operating systems
and databases are periodically monitored for
appropriateness; and

Highly privileged access is restricted to
appropriate personnel.

Other areas that were independently assessed
included password policies, security configurations,
controls over changes to applications and databases
and that business users, developers and production
support did not have access to change applications,
the operating system or databases in the production
environment.

As a consequence of deficiencies identified, a range
of other procedures were performed:

- where inappropriate access was identified,
understanding the nature of the access and
obtaining additional evidence on the
appropriateness of the activities performed;

10
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- performing additional substantive testing on
specific year-end reconciliations (i.e. bank
account and suspense account reconciliations)
and obtaining confirmations with external
counterparties;

- obtaining a list of users’ access permissions and
manually comparing this to other access lists
where segregation of duties was deemed to be of
higher risk

We are satisfied that our audit procedures have been
appropriately planned and performed.

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on-
the financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Entity, the accounting processes
and controls, and the industry in which it operates.

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in
the financial statements. In particular, we looked at where the directors made subjective judgements, for
example in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering
future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits we also addressed the risk of management
override of internal controls, including evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the directors that
represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

The Entity comprises one legal entity in the UK, in establishing the overall approach to the audit a key element-.
of our audit involved assessing controls and processes to be tested in other HSBC Group and shared service
centre locations. The HSBC Group engagement team performed audit procedures for our purposes, including
the revaluation of trading inventory and testing of IT applications under our instruction.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds
for materiality. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit
and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and
disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial
statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as
follows:

Overall materiality £5.9m (2016: £3.9).

How we determined it 1% of Regulatory Capital.

Rationale for benchmark We believe that capital resources is the appropriate benchmark considering
applied that the Entity is a wholly owned subsidiary and the principal users of the

financial statements.

We agreed with the Audit and Risk Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during
our audit above £292,000 (2016: £196,000) as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view,
warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

11



HSBC Private Bank (UK) Limited

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of HSBC Private Bank (UK) Limited

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you when:

o thedirectors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

o the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the Entity’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to
the Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express
an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify an apparent materia! inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures
to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement
of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based
on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Report of the Directors, we also considered whether the disclosures
required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, I1SAs (UK)
require us also to report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Report of the Directors

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic
Report and Report of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2017 is consistent with the financial
statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Entity and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Report of the Directors.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 7, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal
control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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HSBC Private Bank (UK) Limited ;

Independent Auditors’' Report to the Members of HSBC Private Bank (UK) Limited

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Entity’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Entity or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so. :

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an-audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's
website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Entity’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in
giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom
this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in
writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

¢ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Entity, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

s certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

¢ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
Appointment

Following the recommendation of the Audit and Risk Committee, we were appointed by the members on 15
July 2015 to audit the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 and subsequent financial
periods. The period of total uninterrupted engagement is 3 years, covering the years ended 31 December 2015
to 31 December 2017.

Matthew Falconer (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

20 February 2018
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HSBC Private Bank (UK) Limited

Financial Statements

Income statement for the year ended 31 December 2017

Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense

Net fee income

Net trading income
Other operating income

Net operating income before loan impairment charges and other credit
risk provision

Loan impairment (charges)/recovery and other credit risk provisions

Net operating income
Employee compensation and benefits
General and administrative expenses

Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets

Total operating expenses

Operating profit

Profit before tax
Tax expense

Profit for the year

Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2017

Note

14

2017 2016
£'000 £'000
122,755 145,362
(12,082) (15,952)
110,673 129,410
39,658 57,018
(13,232) (10,186)
26,426 46,832
2,971 3,839
36,232 34,121
176,302 214,202
{10,431) 5,854
165,871 220,056
(38,341) (65,456)
(101,057) (79,422)
(634) (51)
(140,132) (144,929)
25,739 75,127
25,739 75,127
(7,187) {20,529)
18,552 54,598

All operations are continuing. There has been no comprehensive income or expense other than the profit for

the year as shown above (2016: £nil).

The notes on pages 18 to 64 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC Private Bank (UK) Limited
Registered No: 499482
Financial Statements

Balance sheet as at 31 December 2017

Note 2017 2016
£'000 £'000

Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 16,316 7,563
Derivatives 25 9,626 12,175
Loans and advances to banks 10 2,438,975 ) 855,429
Loans and advances to customers ' 11 4,474,483 4,565,629
Prepayments and accrued income 17,228 17,325
Investments in subsidiaries 12 - 401,360
Property, plant and equipment 13 23 23
Intangible assets . 14 9,092 3,174
Deferred tax assets . . 8 1,399 1,612
Other assets . 15 43,977 379,351
Total assets T 7,011,119 6,243,641
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities .
Deposits by banks . - 48,399
Customer accounts 16 6,045,228 5,368,164
Derivatives 25 8,989 15,746
Accruals, deferred income and other liabilities 18 343,704 58,986
Current tax liabilities 7 6,813 37,276
Provisions 17 2,628 1,844
Total liabilities X . 6,407,362 5,530,415
Equity
Called up share capital 19 176,910 176,910
Share premium account 404,636 404,636
Retained earnings . 22,211 131,680
Total equity 603,757 713,226
Total liabilities and equity 7,011,119 6,243,641

The notes on pages 18 to 64 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 14 to 17 were approved by the Board of Directors on 20 February 2018 and
were signed on its behalf by: :

CD Allen
Director
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HSBC Private Bank {UK) Limited

Financial Statements

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2017

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Non-cash items included in profit before tax

Change in operating assets

Change in operating liabilities

Elimination of exchange differences

Tax paid

Net cash {used in)/generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiary

Net cash generated from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Subordinated liabilities repaid

Dividends paid to shareholders

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents brought forward
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents carried forward

The notes on pages 18 to 64 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note

20
20
20

20

2017 2016
£'000 £'000
25,739 75,127
12,268 (4,689)
(1,337,370) 611,447
982,602 101,679
(2,843) (4,127)
(37,167) -
(356,771) 779,437
401,360 -
401,360 -

- (85,349)
(128,000) {625,000)
(128,000) (710,349)
(83,411) 69,088
822,285 652,656
(5,434) 100,541
733,440 822,285




HSBC Private Bank (UK} Limited

Financial Statements

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2017

Called up Share Retained Total equity
share capital premium earnings

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

At 1 January 2017 176,910 404,636 131,680 713,226
Profit for the year - - 18,552 18,552
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 18,552 18,552
Dividends to shareholders . - - (128,000) {128,000)
Net impact of equity-settled share-based payments - - (50) (50)
Other movements . - - 29 29
At 31 December 2017 176,910 404,636 22,211 603,757

Called up
share Share Retained

capital premium earnings  Total equity

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

At 1January 2016 176,910 404,636 701,963 1,283,509
Profit for the year - - 54,598 54,598
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 54,598 54,598
Dividends to shareholders . - - (625,000) {625,000)
Net impact of equity-settled share-based payments . - - 134 134
Other movements : - - (15} (15)
At 31 December 2016 176,910 404,636 131,680 713,226

The notes on pages 18 to 64 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Equity is wholly attributable to equity shareholders of HSBC Private Bank (UK) Limited.
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HSBC Private Bank (UK) Limited

Notes on the Financial Statements

1 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

The financial statements of the Entity have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 as
applicable to companies using IFRS. The principal accounting. policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements have been consistently applied to all of the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

1.1 Basis of preparation

(a) Compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards

The financial statements of the Entity have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as issued by the 1ASB,
including interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee, and as endorsed by the European
Union (‘EV’).

There were no unendorsed standards effective for the year ended 31 December 2017 affecting these financial
statements and the Entity’s application of IFRSs results in no differences between IFRSs as issued by the 1ASB
and IFRSs as endorsed by the EU. :

Standards adopted during the year ended 31 December, 2017

There were no new standards applied in 2017.

(b) Future accounting developments

Minor amendments to IFRSs

The IASB has published a number of minor amendments to IFRSs in the 'Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-
2016' and in a series of stand-alone amendments which are effective from 1 January 2018, but which have not
yet been endorsed for use in the EU. The Entity expects they will have an insignificant effect, when adopted,
on the financial statements.

Major new IFRSs

The IASB has published IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’, IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ and .
IFRS 16 ‘Leases’. IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and IFRS 16 have been endorsed for.use in the EU.

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’
In July 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’, which is the comprehensive standard to replace IAS

39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’, and includes requirements for classification and
measurement of financial assets and liabilities, impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting.
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HSBC Private Bank (UK) Limited

Notes on the Financial Statements

Classification and measurement

The classification and measurement of financial assets will depend on how these are managed (the Entity's
business model) and their contractual cash flow characteristics. These factors determine whether the financial
assets are measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income ('FVOCI') or fair value
through profit or loss ('FVPL'}. The combined effect of the application of the business model and the
contractual cash flow characteristics tests will result in no differences in the population of financial assets
measured at amortised cost or fair value compared with 1AS 39 for the Ehtity.

Impairment

The impairment requirements apply to financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVOCI, lease
receivables and certain loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. At initial recognition, an
impairment allowance (or provision in the case of commitments and guarantees) is required for.expected
credit losses (‘ECL’) resulting from default events that are possible within the next 12 months ('12-month ECL’).
In the event of a significant increase in credit risk, an allowance (or. provision) is required for ECL resulting from
all possible default events over the expected life of the financial instrument (‘lifetime ECL’). Financial assets
where 12-month ECL is recognised are in ‘stage 1’; financial assets that are considered to have experienced a
significant increase in credit risk are in ‘stage 2’; and financial assets for which there is objective evidence of
impairment so are considered to be in default or otherwise credit impaired are in ‘stage 3’.

The assessment of credit risk and the estimation of ECL are required to be unbiased and probability-weighted,
and should incorporate all available information relevant to the assessment, including information about past
events, current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts of economic conditions at the.reporting
date. In addition, the estimation of ECL should take into account the time value of money. As a result, the
recognition and measurement of impairment is intended to be more forward-looking than under IAS 39, and
the resulting impairment charge will tend to be more volatile. IFRS 9 will also tend to result in an increase in
the total level of impairment allowances, since all financial assets will be assessed for at least 12-month ECL
and the population of financial assets to which lifetime ECL applies is likely to be larger than the population for
which there is objective evidence of impairment in accordance with IAS 39.

Hedge accounting

The general hedge accounting requirements aim to simplify hedge accounting, creating a stronger link with
risk management strategy and permitting hedge accounting to be applied to a greater variety of hedging
instruments and risks. However, they do not explicitly address macro hedge accounting strategies, which are
particularly important for banks. As a result, IFRS 9 includes an accounting policy choice to remain with IAS 39
hedge accounting.

Transition

The requirements of IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’ will be adopted from 1 January 2018. IFRS 9 includes an
accounting policy choice to continue IAS 39 hedge accounting, which the Entity has exercised, although it will
implement the revised hedge accounting disclosures required by the related amendments to IFRS 7-'Financial
instruments: Disclosures'. The classification and measurement and impairment requirements are applied
retrospectively by adjusting the opening balance sheet at the date of initial application, with no requirement
to restate comparative periods. The Entity does not intend to restate comparatives.

Adoption will reduce net assets at 1 January 2018 by £3,678,000 consisting of impairment reducing loans and
advances to customers by £4,934,000 and increasing deferred tax assets by £1,256,000.
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HSBC Private Bank (UK) Limited

Notes on the Financial Statements

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

In May 2014, the 1ASB issued IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ and it is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. IFRS 15 provides a principles-based approach for revenue
recognition and introduces the concept of recognising revenue for performance obligations as they are
satisfied. The Entity will adopt the standard on its mandatory effective date, and the standard will be applied
on a modified retrospective basis, recognising the cumulative effect, if any, of initially applying the standard as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings. The Entity has assessed the impact of IFRS 15 and
expects that the standard will have no significant effect, when applied, on the financial statements of the
Entity.

(c) Foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Entity is Sterling pounds, which is also the presentational currency of the
financial statements of the Entity.

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange on the date of the transaction. Assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange at the balance sheet
date except non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost which are translated using the rate
of exchange at the initial transaction date. Exchange differences are included in other comprehensive income
or in the income statement depending on where the gain or loss on the underlying item is recognised.

(d) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial information requires the use of estimates and judgements about future
conditions. In view of the inherent uncertainties and the high level of subjectivity involved in the recognition
or measurement of items highlighted as the critical accounting estimates and judgements in section 1.2 below,
it is possible that the outcomes in the next financial year could differ from those on which Director’s estimates
are based. This would result in materially different conclusions from those reached by management for the
purposes of these Financial Statements. Directors' selection of the Entity’s accounting policies which contain
critical estimates and judgements reflects the materiality of the items to which the policies are applied and the
high degree of judgement and estimation uncertainty involved.

(e) Going concern
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Directors are satisfied that the Entity
has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. In making this assessment, the Directors

have considered a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, including future
projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources.
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Notes on the Financial Statements

1.2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Investments in subsidiaries

The Entity classifies investments in entities which it controls as subsidiaries. Where an entity is governed by
voting rights, the Entity consolidates when it holds, directly or indirectly, the necessary voting rights to pass
resolutions by the governing body. In all other cases, the assessment of control is more complex and
requires judgement of other factors, including having exposure to variability of returns, power to direct
relevant activities and whether power is held as agent or principal.

The Entity's investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses.

(b) Valuation of financial instruments

All financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is generally its transaction
price (that is, the fair value of the consideration given or received). However, if there is a difference between
the transaction price and the fair value of financial instruments whose fair value is based on a quoted price in
an active market or a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, the Entity recognises
the difference as a trading gain or loss at inception (a 'day 1 gain or loss'). In all other cases, the entire day 1
gain or loss is deferred and recognised in the income statement over the life of the transaction either until the
transaction matures or is closed out, the valuation inputs become observable or HSBC enters into an offsetting
transaction.

The fair value of financial instruments is generally measured on an individual basis. However, in cases where
the Entity manages a group of financial assets and liabilities according to its net market or credit risk exposure,
the fair value of the group of financial instruments is measured on a net basis but the underlying financial
assets and liabilities are presented separately in the financial statements, unless they satisfy the IFRS
offsetting criteria.
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Notes on the Financial Statements

(c) Financial instruments measured at amortised cost

Loans and advances to banks and customers; are measured at amortised cost unless in a hedging relationship.
The carrying value of these financial instruments at initial recognition includes any directly attributable
transaction costs. If the initial fair value is lower than the cash amount advanced, such as in the case of some
leveraged finance and syndicated lending activities, the difference is deferred and recognised over the life of
the loan (as described in note 24) through the recognition of interest income, unless the loan becomes
impaired.

Impairment of loans and advances

Losses for impaired loans are recognised when there is objective evidence that impairment of a loan portfolio
has occurred. Losses which may arise from future events are not recognised. :

Individually assessed loans and advances

The factors considered in determining whether a loan is individually significant for the purposes of assessing
impairment include the size of the loan, the number of loans in the portfolio, the importance of the individual
loan relationship and how this is managed. Loans that are determined to be individually significant will be
individually assessed for impairment, except when volumes of defaults and losses are sufficient to justify
treatment under a collective methodology.

Loans considered as individually significant are typically to corporate and commercial customers, are for larger
amounts and are managed on an individual basis. For these loans, the Entity considers on a case-by-case basis
at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that a loan is impaired.

The determination of the realisable value of security is based on the most recently updated market value at
the time the impairment assessment is performed. The value is not adjusted for expected future changes in
market prices, though adjustments are made to reflect local conditions such as forced sale discounts.

Impairment losses are calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows of a loan, which include
expected future receipts of contractual interest, at the loan's original effective interest rate or an
approximation thereof, and comparing the resultant present value with the loan's current carrying amount.

Collectively assessed loans and advances

Impairment is assessed collectively to cover losses which have been incurred but have not yet been identified
on loans subject to individual assessment or for homogeneous groups of loans that are not considered
individually significant, which are generally retail lending portfolios.

Incurred but not yet identified impairment

Individually assessed loans for which no evidence of impairment has been specifically identified on an
individual basis are grouped together according to their credit risk characteristics for a collective impairment
assessment. This assessment captures impairment losses that the Entity has incurred as a result of events
occurring before the balance sheet date that the Entity is not able to identify on an individual loan basis, and
that can be reliably estimated. When information becomes available that identifies losses on individual loans
within a group, those loans are removed from the group and assessed individually.

Write-off of loans and advances
Loans and the related impairment allowance accounts are normally written off, either partially or in full, when
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Where loans are secured, this is generally after receipt of any

proceeds from the realisation of security. in circumstances where the net realisable value of any collateral has
been determined and there is no reasonable expectation of further recovery, write-off may be earlier.
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Notes on the Financial Statements

Reversals of impairment

If the amount of an impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period, and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the excess is written back by reducing
the loan impairment allowance account accordingly. The write-back is recognised in the income statement.

Renegotiated loans

Loans subject to collective impairment assessment whose terms have been renegotiated are no longer
considered past due, but are treated as up to date loans for measurement purposes once a minimum number
of required payments have been received. Where collectively assessed loan portfolios include significant levels
of renegotiated loans, these loans are segregated from other parts of the loan portfolio for the purposes of
collective impairment assessment, to reflect their risk profile. Loans subject to individual impairment
assessment, whose terms have been renegotiated, are-subject to ongoing review to determine whether they
remain impaired. The carrying amounts of loans that-have been classified as renegotiated retain this
classification until maturity or derecognition.

A loan that is renegotiated is derecognised if the existing agreement is cancelled and a new agreement made
on substantially different terms, or if the terms of an existing agreement are modified, such that the
renegotiated loan is substantially a different financial instrument. Any new loans that arise following
derecognition events will continue to be disclosed as renegotiated loans and are assessed for impairment as
above.
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Notes on the Financial Statements

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Loan impairment allowances represent management’s best estimate of losses incurred in the loan portfolios at the balance
sheet date. Management is required to exercise judgement in making assumptions and estimates when calculating loan
impairment allowances on both individually and collectively assessed loans and advances.

Collective impairment allowances are subject to estimation uncertainty, in part because it is not practicable to identify
losses on an individual loan basis due to the large number of individually insignificant loans in the portfolio. The estimation
methods include the use of statistical analyses of historical information, supplemented with significant management
judgement, to assess whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual level of incurred losses is
likely to be greater or less than historical experience. Where changes in economic, regulatory or behavioural conditions
result in the most recent trends in portfolio risk factors being not fully reflected.in the statistical models, risk factors are
taken into account by adjusting the impairment allowances derived solely from historical loss experience.

e Risk factors include loan portfolio growth, product mix, unemployment rates, bankruptcy trends, geographical
concentrations, loan product features, economic conditions such as national and local trends in housing markets, the
level of interest rates, portfolio seasoning, account management policies and practices, changes in laws and
regulations, and other influences on customer payment patterns. Different factors are applied in different regions and
countries to reflect local economic conditions, laws and regulations. The methodology and the assumptions used in
calculating impairment losses are reviewed regularly in the light of differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience.

*  Forindividually assessed loans, judgement is required in determining whether there is objective evidence that a loss
event has occurred and, if so, the measurement of the impairment allowance. In determining whether there is
objective evidence that a loss event has occurred, judgement is exercised in evaluating all relevant information on
indicators of impairment, including the consideration of whether payments are contractually past due and the
consideration of other factors indicating deterioration in the financial condition and outlock of borrowers affecting
their ability to pay.

A higher level of judgement is required for loans to borrowers showing signs of financial difficulty in market sectors
experiencing economic stress, particularly where the likelihood of repayment is affected by the prospects for refinancing
or the sale of a specified asset. For those loans where objective evidence of impairment exists, management determines
the size of the allowance required based on a range of factors such as the realisable value of security, the likely dividend
available on liquidation or bankruptcy, the viability of the customer’s business model and the capacity to trade successfully
out of financial difficulties and generate sufficient cash flow to service debt obligations.

The Entity might provide loan forbearance to borrowers experiencing financial difficulties by agreeing to modify the
contractual payment terms of loans in order to improve the management of customer relationships, maximise collection
opportunities or avoid default or repossession. Where forbearance activities are significant, higher levels of judgement and
estimation uncertainty are involved in determining their effects on loan impairment allowances. Judgements are involved
in differentiating the credit risk characteristics of forbearance cases, including those which return to performing status
following renegotiation. Where collectively assessed loan portfolios include significant levels of loan forbearance,
portfolios are segmented to reflect the different credit risk characteristics of forbearance cases, and estimates are made of
the incurred {osses inherent within each forbearance portfolio segment. Forbearance activities take place in both retail and
wholesale loan portfolios.

The exercise of judgement requires the use of assumptions which are highly subjective and very sensitive to the risk
factors, in particular to changes in economic and credit conditions across a large number of geographical areas. Many of
the factors have a high degree of interdependency and there is no single factor to which our loan impairment allowances
as a whole are sensitive. :
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(d) Financial instruments measured at fair value
Derivatives

Derivatives are financial instruments that derive their value from the price of underlying items such as
equities, interest rates or other indices. Derivatives are recognised initially and are subsequently measured at
fair value with changes in fair value generally recorded in the income statement. Derivatives are classified as
assets when their fair value is positive or as liabilities when their fair value is negative, this includes embedded
derivatives which are bifurcated from the host contract when they meet the definition of a derivative on a
stand-alone basis and are required by IFRSs to be accounted separately from the host contract.

Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are.
reported in ‘Net trading income’. Gains and losses on derivatives managed in conjunction with financial
instruments designated at fair value are reported in ‘Net income from financial instruments designated at fair
value’ together with the gains and losses on the economically hedged items. Where the derivatives are
managed with debt securities issued by the group that are designated at fair value, the contractual interest is.
shown in ‘Interest expense’ together with the interest payable on the issued debt.

Hedge accounting

When derivatives are not part of fair value designated relationships, if held for risk management purposes
they are designated in hedge accounting relationships where the required criteria for documentation and
hedge effectiveness are met. The Entity uses these derivatives or, where allowed, other non-derivative
hedging instruments in fair value hedges, cash flow hedges or hedges of net investments in foreign operations
as appropriate to the risk being hedged.

' Fair value hedge

Fair value hedge accounting does not change the recording of gains and losses on derivatives and other
hedging instruments, but results in recognising changes in the fair value of hedged assets or liabilities
attributable to the hedged risk that would not otherwise be recognised in the income statement. If a hedge
relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, hedge accounting is discontinued; the
cumulative adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item is amortised to the income statement on a
recalculated effective interest rate over the residual period to maturity, unless the hedged item has been
derecognised, in which case it is recognised in the income statement immediately.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Non-qualifying hedges are derivatives entered into as economic hedges of assets and liabilities for which
hedge accounting was not applied.

(e) Employee compensation and benefits

Share-based payments

The Entity enters into both equity-settled and cash-settled share-based payment arrangements with its
employees as compensation for services provided by employees. .

The vesting period for these schemes may commence before the grant date if the employees have started to
render services in respect of the award before the grant date. Expenses are recognised when the employee
starts to render service to which the award relates.

Cancellations result from the failure to meet a non-vesting condition during the vesting period, and are treated
as an acceleration of vesting recognised immediately in the income statement. Failure to meet a vesting
condition by the employee is not treated as a cancellation, and the amount of expense recognised for the
award is adjusted to reflect the number of awards expected to vest.
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(f) Tax

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the income statement except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the tax is recognised in the same statement in which the related item appears.

Current tax is the tax expected to be payable on the taxable profit for the year and on any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years. The Entity provides for potential current tax liabilities that may arise on
the basis of the amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the balance sheet, and the amounts attributed to such assets and liabilities for tax purposes. Deferred tax is
calculated using the tax rates expected to apply in the periods as the assets will be realised or the liabilities
settled.

Current and deferred tax are calculated based on tax rates and laws enacted, or substantively enacted, by the
balance sheet date. .

(g) Provisions, contingent liabilities and guarantees

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle a
present legal or constructive obligation that has arisen as a result of past events and for which a reliable

estimate can be made.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Judgement is involved in determining whether a present obligation exists and in estimating the probability, timing and
amount of any outflows. Professionat expert advice is taken on the assessment of litigation, property (including onerous
contracts) and similar obligations. Provisions for legal proceedings and regulatory matters typically require a higher degree
of judgement than other types of provisions. When matters are at an early stage, accounting judgements can be difficult
because of the high degree of uncertainty associated with determining whether a present obligation exists, and estimating
the probability and amount of any outflows that may arise. As matters progress, management and legal advisers evaluate
on an ongoing basis whether provisions should be recognised, revising previous judgements and estimates as appropriate.
At more advanced stages, it is typically easier to make judgements and estimates around a better defined set of possible
outcomes. However, the amount provisioned can remain very sensitive to the assumptions used. There could be a wide
range of possible outcomes for any pending legal proceedings, investigations or inquiries. As a result, it is often not
practicable to quantify a range of possible outcomes for individual matters. It is also not practicable to meaningfully-
quantify ranges of potential outcomes in aggregate for these types of provisions because of the diverse nature and
circumstances of such matters and the wide range of uncertainties involved. Provisions for customer remediation also
require significant levels of estimation and judgement. The amounts of provisions recognised depend on a number of
different assumptions, such as, the volume of inbound complaints, the projected period of inbound complaint volumes,
the decay rate of complaint volumes, the populaiion identified as systemically mis-sold and the number of policies per
customer complaint.
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Contingent liabilities, contractual commitments and guarantees
Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities, which include certain guarantees and letters of credit pledged as collateral security, and
contingent liabilities related to legal proceedings or regulatory matters, are not recognised in the financial
statements but are disclosed unless the probability of settlement is remote. .

Financial guarantee contracts

Liabilities under financial guarantee contracts which are not classified as insurance contracts are recorded
initially at their fair value, which is generally the fee received or present value of the fee receivable.

The Entity has issued financial guarantees and similar contracts to other group entities. The group elects to
account for certain guarantees as insurance contracts in the bank's financial statements, in which case they
are measured and recognised as insurance liabilities. This election is made on a contract by contract basis, and
is irrevocable.

(h) Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings are stated at historical cost, or fair value at the date of transition to IFRSs (‘deemed cost’),
less impairment losses and depreciation over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

freehold land is not depreciated;
freehold buildings are depreciated at the greater of 2% per annum on a straight-line basis or over their
remaining useful lives; and

e leasehold land and buildings are depreciated over the shorter of their unexpired terms of the leases or
their remaining useful lives.

Equipment, fixtures and fittings (including equipment on operating leases where the Entity is the lessor) are
stated at cost less impairment losses and depreciation over their useful lives, which are generally between 0
years and 20 years. Property, plant and equipment is subject to an impairment review if their carrying amount
may not be recoverable.

(i) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less amortisation and are amortised straight line over their estimated
useful lives of five years. Expenditure on internally developed software is recognised as an asset when the
Entity is able to demonstrate its intention and ability to complete the development and use the software in a
manner that will generate future economic benefits and can reliably measure the cost to complete
development. Borrowing costs are not included in the capitalised costs of intangible assets. Assets are subject
to regular impairment reviews which compare the carrying value to the expected value in use. Any impairment
losses are recognised in the Income Statement. Amortisation does not commence until the asset is brought
into operational use.

(i) Called up share capital
Financial instruments issued are generally classified as equity when- there is no contractual obligation to

transfer cash or other financial assets. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of equity
instruments are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds, net of tax.
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(k) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Such investments are normally those
with less than three months’ maturity from the date of acquisition.

() Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(m) Operating income
Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense for all financial instruments excluding those classified as held for trading or
designated at fair value are recognised in ‘Interest income’ and ‘Interest expense’ in the income statement
using the effective interest method.

Interest on impaired financial assets is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Fee income is earned from a diverse range of services provided by the Entity to its customers. Fee income is

accounted for as follows:

e income earned on the execution of a significant act is recognised as revenue when the act is completed
(for example, fees arising from negotiating a transaction); and

* income earned from the provision of services is recognised as revenue as the services are provided (for
example, asset management services).

Net trading income comprises all gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities held for trading, together with the related interest income, expense and dividends.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive a payment is established. This is usually the date
when the shareholders approve the dividend for unlisted equity securities. :
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2 Operating Profit

Operating profit is stated after the following items of income, expense, gains and losses, and loan impairment
charges and other credit risk provisions:

2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Interest income
Short-term funds and loans and advances to banks 6,358 7,042
Loans and advances to customers . 116,397 138,320
Total interest income . 122,755 145,362
Interest recognised on impaired financial assets . 302 342
Interest expense .
Deposits by banks . 164 668
Customer accounts 11,918 15,284
Total interest expense ) 12,082 15,952
7
2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Fee income
Fees earned on financial assets or liabilities not held for trading nor designated at fair value,
other than fees included in effective interest rate calculations on these types of assets and
liabilities . 9,866 34,460
Fees earned on trust and other fiduciary activities where the Entity holds or invests assets on
behalf of its customers . 29,792 22,558
Fee expense
Fees payable on financial assets or liabilities not held for trading nor designated at fair value,
other than fees included in effective interest rate calculations on these types of assets and
liabilities 13,232 10,186
Loan impairment charges/(recovery) and other credit risk provisions
Net impairment charge/(recovery) on loans and advances . 10,431 (5,854)
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3 Employee compensation and benefits

Total employee compensation

2017 2016

£'000 £'000
Wages and salaries including share-based payments . 31,200 55,034
Social security costs 4,076 6,124
Post-employment benefits ) .. 3,165 4,298
Year ended 31 December : 38,441 65,456
Average monthly number of persons employed by the Entity during the year.

2017 2016
Client/Product services 265 244
Operations and support 6 116
Head office administration 10 60
Asset Management services - 56
Year ended 31 December . 281 476

All employees were fully transferred to the ServCo group in 2016 and are no longer included in the Entity's
head count. Management charge for services provided by ServCo group is included in General and
administrative expense.

Post-employment benefit plans
The Entity’s employees are members of various schemes. -

The HSBC Bank (UK) Pension Scheme, which is the principal scheme, covers employees of HSBC Bank plc and
other group companies. This scheme, assets of which are held in a separate trust fund, comprises a funded
defined benefit section, which is closed, and a defined contnbutnon section, which was established on 1 July
1996 for new employees.

There is no contractual agreement or stated policy for charging the net defined benefit cost from HSBC Bank
plc to the other members of the group pension plan. Instead the Entity makes a regular payment to HSBC Bank .
plc, for HSBC Bank pic to invest in the various schemes on behalf of the Entity’s employees. The Entity has not
been asked to contribute to any scheme deficit, except through amendments to its regular payments.

Full disclosure of the principal actuarial financial assumptions used to calculate the defined benefit pension
plans at 31 December 2017, of which employees of the Entity are members, are disclosed in the statutory
accounts of HSBC Bank plc.

In 2017, the pension cost for defined contribution plans which cover 98% of the Entity’s employees was

£3,165,000 (2016: £5,260,000). The Entity expects to make £3,188,000 of contributions to the defined
contribution plans during 2018.
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4  Share-based payments

The share-based payment income statement charge is recognised in wages and salaries as follows:

Restricted share awards

Savings-related and.other share award option plans

Year ended 31 December

HSBC share award plans

2017 2016
£'000 £'000
332 1,751
158 128
490 1,879

Plans

Restricted share awards (including e
annual incentive awards delivered in
shares) and GPSP

Movement on HSBC share awards

Restricted share awards outstanding at 1 Jan
Additions during the year

Released in the year

Forfeited in the year

Transferred during the year

Restricted share awards outstanding at 31 Dec

Weighted average fair value of awards granted (£)

Policy

An assessment of performance over the relevant period ending on 31
December is used to determine the amount of the award to be
granted.

Deferred awards generally require employees to remain in
employment over the vesting period and are not subject to
performance conditions after the grant date.

Deferred share awards generally vest over a period of three years and
GPSP awards vest after five years.

Vested shares may be subject to a retention requirement post-vesting.
GPSP awards are retained until cessation of employment. .
Awards granted from 2010 onwards are subject to malus provision
prior to vesting.

Awards granted to Material Risk Takers from 2016 onwards are
subject to clawback post vesting.

2017 2016
Number Number
492,210 758,280
219,491 823,087

(301,919) (717,831).
(48,977) (48,359)
2,434 (322,967)
363,239 492,210
5.84 4.22
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HSBC share option plans

Plans Policy

Savings-related share option plans e Two plans: the UK plan- and the International Plan. The last grant of
('Sharesave') options under the International Plan was in 2012.

e From 2014, eligible employees can save up to £500 per month with the
option to use the savings to acquire shares.

e Exercisable within six months following either the third or fifth
anniversaries of the commencement of a three-year or five-year
contract, respectively.

* The exercise price is set at a 20% (2016: 20%) discount to the market
value immediately preceding the date of invitation.

Calculation of fair values

The fair values of share options are calculated using a Black-Scholes model. The fair value of a share award is
based on the share price at the date of the grant.

Movement on HSBC share option plans
Savings-related share

option plans
Number WAEP!
£
Outstanding at 1 Jan 2017 564,679 4.26
Granted during the year . 138,320 5.96
Exercised during the year {53,345) 5.08
Expired during the year (48,188) 4.11
Transferred during the year (37,722) 4.30
Outstanding at 31 Dec 2017 . . 563,744 4.41
Weighted average remaining contractual life (years) : 2.32
1 Weighted average exercise price
Savings-related share
option plans
Number WAEP!
£
Outstanding at 1 Jan 2016 751,319 5.84
Granted during the year 676,640 4.40
Exercised during the year (45,871) 4.72
Expired during the year (255,179) 433
Transferred during the year (562,230) 4.27
Outstanding at 31 Dec 2016 564,679 4.26
Weighted average remaining contractual life (years) . 293

1 Weighted average exercise price

The weighted average fair value of share options outstanding, which is calculated when transactions are
contracted, was £0.82 {2016: £0.83).

32



HSBC Private Bank (UK) Limited

Notes on the Financial Statements

5 Directors' emoluments

The aggregate emoluments of the Directors of the Entity, computed in accordance with the Companies Act
2006 as amended by statutory instrument 2008 No.410, were:

2017 2016

£'000 £'000
Fees’' 154 88
Salaries and other emoluments . 1,650 1,267
Annual incentives’ . 1,387 1,087
Year ended 31 Dec 3,191 2,442
1 Fees included fees paid to non-executive Directors.
2 Awards made to executive Directors in respect of 2017 performance comprise a mixture of cash and HSBC Holdings pic ordinary shares. The amount shown

comprised £241,000 in cash, £392,000 in deferred cash (vesting annually over a three-year period), £223,000 in Restricted Shares and £531,000 in deferred
Restricted Shares (vesting annually over a three-year period) issued under the.HSBC Share Plan.

Awards made to executive Directors in respect of 2016 performance comprise a mixture of cash and HSBC Holdings plc ordinary shares. The amount shown
comprised £261,000 in cash, £285,000 in deferred cash (vesting annually over a three-year period}, £256,000 in Restricted Shares and £285,000 in deferred

Restricted Shares (vesting annually over a three-year period} issued under the HSBC Share Plan.

2 Directors exercised share options over HSBC Holdings plc ordinary shares during the year (2016: £nil).

Awards were made to 3 Directors under long-term incentive plans in respect of qualifying services rendered in
2017 (2016: 2 Directors). During 2017, 3 Directors received shares in respect of awards under long-term
incentive plans that vested during the year (2016: 2).

Retirement benefits are accruing to nil Directors under a defined benefit scheme and are accruing to 3
Directors under money purchase schemes in respect of Directors’ qualifying services. Contributions of £38,129
(2016: 55,762) were made during the year to money. purchase arrangements and £nil to defined benefit
schemes in respect of Directors’ qualifying services (2016: £nil).

Discretionary bonuses for Directors are based on a combination of individual and corporate performance and
are determined by the Remuneration Committee of the Entity’s ultimate parent Entity, HSBC Holdings plc. The
cost of any conditional awards under the HSBC Share Plan and the HSBC Plan 2011 (‘the Plans’) is recognised
through an annual charge based on the fair value of the awards, apportioned over the period of service to
which the award relates. Details of the Plans are contained within the Directors’ Remuneration Report of HSBC:
Holdings plc.

Of these aggregate figures, the following amounts are attributable to the highest paid Director:

2017 2016

£'000 £'000
Salaries and other emoluments : 858 664
Annual incentives' 762 606
Year ended 31 Dec . 1,620 1,270
1 Awards made to the highest paid Director in respect of 2017 performance comprise a mixture of cash and HSBC Holdings plc ordinary shares. The amount shown

comprised £122,000 in cash, £229,000 in deferred cash (vesting annually over a three-year period), £122,000 in Restricted Shares and £289,000 in deferred
Restricted Shares (vesting annually over o three-yeor period) issued under the HSBC Share Plan.

Awards made to the highest paid Director in respect of 2016 performance comprise a mixture of cash and HSBC Holdings plc ordinary shares. The amount shown
comprised £121,000 in cash, £182,000 in deferred cash (vesting annually over o three-year period), £121,000 in restricted shares and £182,000 in deferred

Restricted shares (vesting annually over a three-year period) issued under the HSBC Share Plan.
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The highest paid Director received 61,856 (2016: 69,830) shares, in respect of qualifying services, as the result
of awards under long-term incentive plans that vested during the Year. The highest paid Director exercised
3,361 shares options over HSBC Holdings pic ordinary shares during the Year (2016: £nil).

Pension contributions of £10,810 (2016: £21,553) were - made by the Entlty in respect of services by the highest
paid Director during the Year.

6 Auditors’ remuneration

2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Audit fees for HSBC Private Bank (UK) Limited statutory audit:
- Feesrelating to current year 92 80
- Fees relating to previous year . . 21 32
- Fees for audit-related services provided to the Entity . 26 26
Year ended 31 Dec : 139 138,
7 Tax
Tax expense
2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Current tax
UK Corporation tax
- For this year 6,944 20,695
- Adjustments in respect of prior years {102) (34)
Total current tax 6,842 20,661
Deferred tax
- Origination and reversal of temporary differences 175 197
- Effect of changes in tax rates 78 24
- Adjustments in respect of prior years 92 (353)
Total deferred tax . 345 (132)
Year ended 31 Dec : 7,187 20,529

The UK corporation tax rate applying to the Entity was 19.25% {2016: 20.00%).

In the UK Budget on 8 July 2015, The UK Government proposed to reduce the main rate of UK corporation tax
to 19% with effect from 1 April 2017 and to 18% with effect from 1 April 2020. Additionally in the Budget on 16
March 2016 a further rate reduction to 17% was proposed from 1 April 2020, instead of the reduction to 18%
as originally planned.

The rate of reduction to 17% was enacted during the previous period and has therefore been taken into
account in the calculation of the UK related deferred tax balances. These reductions in the corporation tax rate
were enacted in the Finance (No2) Act 2016. _

The UK Government introduced a surcharge on banking companies in the Finance (No2} Act 2015 to apply with
effect from 1 January 2016. This Entity meets the definition of a banking company and will therefore be
subject to the 8% bank surcharge. The surcharge has also been taken into account in the calculation of the
deferred tax balances in this Entity, therefore deferred tax is recognised at 25%.

In addition to the amount charged in the income statement, the aggregate amount of current and deferred tax
relating to items that are credited directly to equity is £262,098.
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Tax reconciliation

The tax charged to the income statement differs from the tax expense that would apply if all profits had been

taxed at the UK Corporation tax rate as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at 19.25% {2016: 20.00%)

Adjustments in respect of prior period liabilities
Permanent disallowables

Adjustment in respect of share-based payments
Impact due to changes in tax rates

Banking surcharge

Year ended 31 Dec

2017
£'000

25,739

4,953

(10)
337
(170}
78

1,999

7,187

%

19.24
(0.04)
1.31
{0.66)
0.30
7.77

27.92

2016
£'000

75,127

15,025
(387)
a7
{79)
23
5,900

20,529

The effective tax rate for 2017 of 27.92% was higher than the UK corporation tax rate of 19.25%.

8 Deferred tax

%

20.00°

(0.52)
0.06

(0.11)
0.03
7.85

27.33

The following table shows the gross deferred tax assets-and liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet and the

related amounts recognised in the Income Statement:

At 1Jan 2017
Income statement (expense)/credit
Equity statement credit

At 31 Dec 2017

At 1Jan 2016
Income statement (expense)/credit
Equity statement credit

At 31 Dec 2016

9 Dividends

Property, Other
plant and Share based temporary

equipment payments differences Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

40 1086 486 1612

160 (272) (233) (345)

- 132 - 132

200 946 253 1399
Property, Other
plant and Share based temporary

equipment payments differences Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

88 823 310 1,221

(48) 4 176 132

- 259 - 259

40 1,086 486 1,612

An interim dividend of £128,000,000 was declared and paid by the Directors on 26 June 2017. In the prior year

two interim dividends were declared of £300,000,000 and £325,000,000.
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10 Loans and advances to banks

2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Nostro balances with parent and fellow subsidiaries 340,272 37,586
Loans and advances held with parent 2,098,703 817,843
Loans and advances to banks 2,438,975 855,429
11 Loans and advances to customers
2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Gross loans and advances to customers 4,522,444 4,606,671
Fair value adjustment to loans hedged by designated swaps 1,542 2,780
Impairment allowances {Note 29) (49,503) (43,822)
Loans and advances to customers 4,474,483 4,565,629
The following table analyses loans and advances to customers by industry sector:
2017 2016
Gross loans and Gross loan by Gross loans and Gross loan by
advances to  industry as % of advancesto  industry as % of
customers  total gross loans customers  total gross loans
£'000 % £'000 %
Personal
- Residential mortgages 2,365,926 52.2 2,390,284 51.9
- Other personal 699,428 15.5 549,939 119
Corporate and commercial
- Commercial, industrial and trade 66,348 1.5 77,961 1.7
- Commercial real state 652,139 14.4 793,158 17.2
- Other property-related 556,749 12.3 643,728 14.0
- Other commercial 139,336 3.1 110,975 2.4
Financial 44,060 1.0 43,406 0.9
At 31 Dec 4,523,986 100.0 4,609,451 100.0
Impaired loans (£'000) 242,862 300,246
as a % of total (%) 5.4 6.5

12 Investment in subsidiaries

100% Share ownership of HSBC Private Bank (C.l) Limited was transferred to HSBC Bank PLC, its parent
undertaking, on 16 May 2017 at cost price of £401,359,503. No gain or loss originated from the transaction.
The Entity had no further investment in subsidiaries.
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13 Propert&, plant and equipment

There are no changes in cost or depreciation and impairment for property, plant and equipment in 2017
(2016: £nil)

14 Intangible assets

Software Software
Development Development
Costs Costs
2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Cost ,
At 1 January 3,225 1,897
Additions 6,552 1,328
Impairment (80) -
As at 31 December 9,697 3,225
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2017 {51) -
Charge for the Year : {554) (51)
As at 31 December (605) (51)
Net book value
At 1 January 3,174 1,897
As at 31 December 9,092 3,174

15 Other assets

Amounts due from fellow subsidiary undertakings are unsecured and repayable on demand.

2017 2016

. £'000 £'000

Amounts due from parent 5,061 -
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries . 35,269 377,811
Other assets ’ 3,647 1,540
At 31 Dec 43,977 379,351
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16 Customer accounts

Customer accounts increased by 13% from £5,368,164,000 in December 2016 to £6,045,228,000 in December
2017. The increase was mainly driven by higher average new deposits of £1,801,000 compared to prior year

(2016: £1,378,000).

17 Provisions

Restructuring Legal Customer
provision provision redress provision Other Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 Jan 2017 583 . - - 1,261 1,844
Increase in provision - 1,600 - - 1,600
Provision utilised (336) - - - {336)
Unused amounts reversed (247) - - (233) (480)
At 31 Dec 2017 - 1,600 - 1,028 2,628 -
Restructuring Legal Provision Customer
provision redress provision Other Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1Jan 2016 2,441 - 200 1,518 4,159
Increase in provision 1,613 - - - 1,613
Provision utilised (3,271) - - - (3,271)
Unused amounts reversed (200) - {200) (257) (657)
At 31 Dec 2016 583 - - 1,261 1,844

Legal Provision

The Entity has raised a provision of £1,600,000 for potential liabilities expected in 2018 relating to its
administration of certain film finance related services.
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18 Accruals, deferred income and other financial liabilities

2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Accruals and deferred income 24,742 27,444
Share-based payment liabilities 3,037 4,877
Amounts owed to immediate parent undertaking 273,277 8,473
Amounts owed to other group companies 38,636 15,797
Other liabilities 4,012 2,395
At 31 Dec 343,704 58,986
19 Called up share capital
2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Issued, allotted and fully paid up
17,961,000 Ordinary shares of £10 each
As at 1 January and 31 December 176,910 176,910
Authorised:
19,500,000 Ordinary shares of £10 each
As at 1 January and 31 December 195,000 195,000
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20 Reconciliation of profit before tax to net cash flow from operating activities

a) Non-cash items included in profit and loss

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Share-based payment expense
Credit-related impairment losses
Provisions raised

Fair value movement

b) Change in operating assets

Change in prepayments and accrued income
Change in loans and advances to banks
Change in loans and advances to customers
Change in other assets

¢) Change in operating liabilities
Change in accruals and deferred income
Change in deposits by banks

Change in customer accounts
Change in other liabilities

d} Cash and cash equivalents comprise

Cash and balances at central banks
Loans and advances to banks of one month or less

e) Interest and dividends

Interest paid
Interest received

2017 2016
£'000 £'000
634 51
158 128
10,431 {5,854)
1,116 955
(71) 31
12,268 (4,689)
2017 2016
£'000 £'000
95 9,580
(1,681,150) (33,715)
61,110 826,263
282,575 {190,681)
(1,337,370) 611,447
2017 2016
£'000 £'000
(2,701) {8,017)
(48,399) (393,333)
747,056 502,733
286,646 296
982,602 101,679
2017 2016
£'000 £'000
16,316 7,563
717,124 814,722
733,440 822,285
2017 2016
£'000 £'000
12,993 15,108
124,194 149,111
137,187 164,219
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21 Contingent liabilities, contractual commitments and guarantees

The following table gives the nominal principal amounts of off-balance sheet transactions:

2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Contract amount  Contract amount
Contingent liabilities:
Guarantees and assets pledged as collateral security 24,494 45,871

Commitments:
Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments to lend 770,860 596,168

770,860 596,168

The Entity could be liable to pay a further proportion of the outstanding amount that Financial Services
Compensation Scheme {'FSCS') has borrowed from HM Treasury.

The ultimate FSCS levy to the industry as a result of the collapses cannot currently be estimated reliably as it is

dependent on various uncertain factors including the potential recoveries of assets by the FSCS and changes in
the level of protected deposits and the population of FSCS member of the time.
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22 Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by measurement basis

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured on an ongoing basis either at fair value or at amortised
cost.

The following table analyses the carrying amount of financial assets and liability by category as defined in IAS
39 and by balance sheet heading:

Derivatives
Financial designated
assets and as fair value
Held Loans and liabilities at hedging
At 31 Dec 2017 for trading receivables amortised cost instruments Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 16,316 - 16,316
Derivatives 9,557 - - 69 9,626
Loans and advances to banks - 2,438,975 - - 2,438,975
Loans and advances to customers - 4,474,483 - - 4,474,483
Total financial assets 9,557 6,913,458 16,316 69 6,939,400
Total non-financial assets : 71,719
Total assets 7,011,119
Liabilities
Customer accounts - - 6,045,228 - 6,045,228
Derivatives 8,115 - - 874 8,989
Total financial liabilities 8,115 - 6,045,228 874 6,054,217
Total non-financial liabilities ' 353,145

Total liabilities 6,407,362
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At 31 Dec 2016

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Derivatives

Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances to
customers

Total financial assets

Total non-financial assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits by banks

Customer accounts

Derivatives

Total financial liabilities

Total non-financial liabilities

Total liabilities

Derivatives

Financial designated

assets and as fair value

Held Loans and liabilities at hedging
for trading receivables amortised cost instruments Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
- - 7,563 - 7,563
12,018 - - 157 12,175
- 855,429 - - 855,429
- 4,565,629 - - 4,565,629
12,018 5,421,058 7,563 157 5,440,796
802,845
6,243,641
- - 48,399 - 48,399
- - 5,368,164 - 5,368,164
13,779 - - 1,967 15,746
13,779 - 5,416,563 1,967 5,432,309
98,106
5,530,415

23 Fair values of financial instruments carried at fair value

Control framework

Fair values are subject to a control framework designed to ensure that they are either determined, or

validated, by a function independent of the risk taker.

For all financial instruments where fair values are determined by reference to externally quoted prices or
observable pricing inputs to models, independent price determination or validation is utilised. In inactive
markets, direct observation of a traded price may not be possible. In these circumstances, the Entity will
source alternative market information to validate the financial instrument’s fair value, with greater weight
given to information that is considered to be more relevant and reliable. The factors that are considered in this

regard are, inter alia:

e the extent to which prices may be expected to represent genuine traded or tradable prices;
e the degree of similarity between financial instruments;

e the degree of consistency between different sources;

e the process followed by the pricing provider to derive the data;

e the elapsed time between the date to which the market data relates and the balance sheet date; and

e the manner in which the data was sourced.

For fair values determined using a valuation models, the control framework may include, as applicable,
development or validation by independent support functions of: (i) the logic within valuation. models; (ii} the
inputs to these models; (iii) any adjustments required outside the valuation models; and (iv) where possible,
model outputs. Valuation models are subject to a process of due diligence and calibration before becoming

operational and are calibrated against external market data on an ongoing basis.
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Determination of fair value

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities are determined according to the following hierarchy:

(a) Level 1 — valuation technique using quoted market price: financial instruments with quoted prices for
identical instruments in active markets that HSBC.can access at the measurement date.

(b) Level 2 — valuation technique using observable inputs: financial instruments with quoted prices for
similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive
markets and financial instruments valued using models where all significant inputs are observable.

() Level 3 — valuation technigue with significant unobservable inputs: financial instruments valued using
valuation techniques where one or more significant inputs are unobservable.

Financial instruments carried at fair value and bases of valuation
Fair values
Valuation techniques

Using With significant

Quoted observable unobservable
market price inputs inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 31 Dec 2017 .
Assets
Derivatives - 9,626 - 9,626
Liabilities
Derivatives - 8,989 - 8,989
Fair values

Valuation techniques

Using With significant

Quoted observable unobservable
market price inputs inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 31 Dec 2016
Assets
Derivatives - 12,175 - 12,175
Liabilities

‘Derivatives - 15,746 - 15,746

There were no significant transfers between financial instruments classified as Level 1 and Leve! 2 in 2017
(2016: £nil).
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24 Fair value of financial instruments not carried at fair value

Fair values are determined according to the hierarchy set out in Note 23.

Fair values
Valuation techniques

Using With significant

Carrying Quoted observable unobservable
amount market price inputs inputs Total
Level1 Level 2 Level 3
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 31 Dec 2017
Assets
Loans and advances to customers 4,474,483 - 1,586,001 2,945,683 4,531,684
Loans and advances to banks 2,438,975 - 2,438,975 - 2,438,975
Liabilities
Customer accounts 6,045,228 - 6,021,519 - 6,021,519
Fair values

Valuation techniques

Using With significant

Carrying Quoted observable unobservable
amount market price inputs inputs Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 31 Dec 2016
Assets .
Loans and advances to customers 4,565,629 - 1,673,878 2,905,271 4,579,149
Loans and advances to banks 855,429 - 855,429 - 855,429
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 48,399 - 48,399 - 48,399
Customer accounts 5,368,164 - 5,370,817 - 5,370,817

Other financial instruments not carried at fair value are typically short-term in nature and reprice to current
market rates frequently. Accordingly, their carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Where repricing is greater than six months using discounted cash flow, each loan or deposit is valued using a
LIBOR-based discount curve applied to the expected cash flows.

Valuation

Fair value is an estimate of price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. It does not reflect the economic.
benefits and costs that Entity expects to flow from an instrument's cash flow over its expected future life. The
Entity's valuation methodologies and assumptions in determining fair values for which no observable market
process are available may differ from those of other companies.

Financial investments
The fair values of listed financial investments are determined using bid market prices. The fair values of

unlisted financial investments are determined using valuation techniques that incorporated the prices and
future earnings streams of equivalent quoted securities.
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Deposits by banks and customer accounts
The fair values of on-demand deposits are approximated by their carrying value. For deposits with longer-term

maturities, fair values are estimated using discounted cash flows, applying current rates offered for deposits of
similar remaining maturities. .

25 Derivatives

Trading derivatives

Derivatives classified as held-for-trading include non-qualifying hedging derivatives, ineffective hedging
derivatives and the components of hedging derivatives that are excluded from assessing hedge effectiveness.
Non-qualifying hedging derivatives are entered into for risk management purposes but do not meet the
criteria for hedge accounting. The held-for-trading category also includes derivatives managed in conjunction
with financial instruments designated at fair value.

Notional contract amounts of derivatives held-for-trading purposes by product type:

2017 2016

£'000 £'000

Foreign exchange 1,571,664 1,988,247

Interest rate 37,125 47,845

Commodities 78,195 85,035

At 31 Dec 1,686,984 2,121,127

Fair values of derivative open positions by type of product contract:

At 31 Dec 2017 At 31 Dec 2016

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Foreign exchange 6,467 . 7,252 9,279 12,415

Interest rate 773 1,737 1,319 3,331

Commodities 2,386 - 1,577 -

Total 9,626 8,989 12,175 15,746

26 Hedging instruments

The Entity uses derivatives (interest rate swaps) for hedging purposes in the management of its own asset and
liability portfolios. This enables the Entity to mitigate the market risk which would otherwise arise from
structural imbalances in the contract rates and other profiles: of its assets and liabilities. All derivatives
qualifying as hedging instruments are fair value hedges as defined under IAS 39.

The notional contract amounts of derivatives held for hedge accounting purposes indicate the nominal value
of transactions outstanding at the balance sheet date; they do not represent amounts at risk.
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Contract amounts of derivatives held-for-hedging purposes by product type:

2017 2016
Fair Fair
value Cash value Cash
hedge Flow hedge Flow
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Interest rate contracts:

- pay fixed swaps 122,210 - 145,425 -

The notional or contractual amounts of interest rate contracts indicate the nominal value of transactions
outstanding at the balance sheet date; they do not represent amounts at risk.

Fair value hedges

The Entity’s fair value hedges consist of interest rate swaps that are used to protect against changes in the fair
value of fixed-rate long-term loans to customers due to movements in market interest rates. If the hedge
relationship is terminated, the fair value adjustment to the hedged item continues to be reported as part of
the basis of the item and is amortised to income as a yield adjustment over the remainder of the hedging
period.

The fair values of outstanding derivatives designated as fair value hedges at the end of the reporting period,
were assets of £69,000 (2016: £157,000) and liabilities of £874,000 {(2016: £1,967,000).

2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Gains/ losses arising from the change in fair value of
fair value hedges:
- On hedging instruments 984 (495)
- On hedged item attributable to the hedged risk (883) 494
Total derivatives B 101 (1)

47



HSBC Private Bank (UK) Limited

Notes on the Financial Statements

27 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of assets and liabilities by residual contractual maturities at the balance sheet date.

Assets

Cash and balances
with central banks
Derivatives

Loans and advances
to banks

Loans and advances
to customers
Accrued income and
other financial assets
Non-financial assets

At 31 Dec 2017

Liabilities and Equity
Customer accounts
Derivatives

Accruals and other
financial labilities
Provisions
Non-financial
liabilities

Equity

At 31 Dec 2017

Due within Due between 3-  Due between Due after
On demand 3 months 12 months 1-5 years Syears Undated Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
8,895 - 7,421 - - - 16,316
4,218 3,461 554 . 1,393 - - 9,626
717,124 - 1,721,851 - - - 2,438,975
1,139,193 397,307 634,379 1,873,788 429,816 - 4,474,483
3,219 57,986 - - - - 61,205
_ . . - - 10,514 10,514
1,872,649 458,754 2,364,205 1,875,181 429,816 10,514 7,011,119
On Due within 3 Due between 3-  Due between Due after
demand months 12 months 1-5 years S years Undated Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
5,790,573 147,990 92,753 12,976 936 - 6,045,228
6,481 242 802 1,238 226 - 8,989
15,372 326,103 975 1,242 12 - 343,704
- - - - - 2,628 2,628
- - - - - 6,813 6,813
- - - - - 603,757 603,757
5,812,426 474,335 94,530 15,456 1,174 613,198 7,011,119
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On Due within Due between 3-  Due between Due after
demand 3 months 12 months 1-5 years 5 years Undated Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Assets
Cash and balances
with central banks 898 - 6,665 - - - 7,563
Derivatives 6,662 3,220 925 1,228 140 - 12,175
Loans and advances
to banks 814,722 - 40,707 - - - 855,429
Loans and advances
to customers 1,198,095 431,962 778,256 1,908,660 248,656 - 4,565,629
Accrued income and
other financial
assets 9,555 387,121 - - - - 396,676
Non-financial assets - - - - - 406,169 406,169
At 31 Dec 2016 2,029,932 822,303 826,553 1,909,888 248,796 406,169 6,243,641
On Due within Due between 3-  Due between Due after
demand 3 months 12 months 1-5 years S years Undated Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Liabilities and Equity
Deposits by banks 48,399 - - - - - 48,399
Customer accounts 5,093,918 113,854 104,622 54,480 1,290 - 5,368,164
Derivatives 8,574 3,237 900 2,846 189 - 15,746
Accruals and other '
financial liabilities 1,181 19,041 14,492 B - 24,272 58,986
Provisions - - - - - 1,844 1,844
Non-financial -
liabilities
- - - - - 37,276 37,276
Equity - - - - - 713,226 713,226
At 31 Dec 2016 5,152,072 136,132 120,014 57,326. 1,479 776,618
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28 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets

Financial assets
Derivatives (Note 25)

Loans and advances to customer at amortised cost
At 31 Dec 2017

Financial assets

Derivatives (Note 25)

Loans and advances to customer at amortised cost

At 31 Dec 2016

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities
Derivatives {Note 25)

Customer accounts at amortised cost
At 31 Dec 2017

Financial liabilities

Derivatives (Note 25)

Customer accounts at amortised cost

At 31 Dec 2016
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Amounts not

offset in the
balance sheet
Amounts
reported in
Gross  the balance Financial Net
amounts sheet instruments amount
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
9,626 9,626 - 9,626
4,522,444 4,522,444 (48,814) 4,473,630
4,532,070 4,532,070 (48,814) 4,483,256
12,175 12,175 - 12,175
4,606,671 4,606,671 {131,253) 4,475,418
4,618,846 4,618,846 (131,253) 4,487,593
Amounts not
offset in the
balance sheet
Amounts
reported in
Gross the balance Financial Net
amounts sheet instruments amount
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
8,989 8,989 - 8,989
6,045,228 6,045,228 {48,814) 5,996,414
6,054,217 6,054,217 (48,814) 6,005,403
15,746 15,746 - 15,746
5,368,164 5,368,164 (131,253) 5,236,911
5,383,910 5,383,910 (131,253) 5,252,657
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29 Management of financial risk

All of the Entity’s activities involve to varying degrees, the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management
of risks or combination of risks. The most important types of risk include financial risk, which comprises credit
risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The management of financial risk and consideration of profitability, cash
flows and capital resources form a key element in the Directors’ assessment of the Entity as a going concern.

a) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a customer or counterparty of the Entity fails to meet a payment
obligation under a contract. :

Within the overall framework of the HSBC Group policy, the Entity has an established risk management
process encompassing credit approvals, the control of exposures, -credit policy direction to the business, and
the monitoring and reporting of exposures.

The management of the Entity is responsible for the quality of its credit portfolios and follows a credit process -
involving delegated approval authorities and credit procedures, the objective of which is to identify problem
exposures in order to accelerate remedial action while building a portfolio of high quality risk assets. The
Entity’s credit risk rating systems and processes differentiate exposures in order to highlight those with greater
risk factors and higher potential severity of loss. Regular reviews are undertaken to assess and evaluate levels
of risk concentration.

1. Maximum exposure to credit risk

2017 2016
Maximum Exposure to Maximum Exposure to
exposure Offset credit risk (net) exposure Offset credit risk (net)
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cash and balances at central 16,316 ) 16,316 7,563 ) 7,563
banks
Derivatives 9,626 - 9,626 12,175 - 12,175
Loans and advances at 4,525,508 (48,814) 4,476,694 5,462,100 (131,253) 5,330,847
amortised costs
Other assets 57,162 - 57,162 396,349 - 396,349
Financial guarantees 24,494 - 24,494 45,871 - 45,871
Loan commitments 770,860 - 770,860 596,168 - 596,168
At 31 Dec 5,403,966 {48,8148) 5,355,152 6,520,226 {131,253) 6,388,973

Il.  Concentration of credit risk exposure

Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties or exposures have comparable economic
characteristics, or such counterparties are engaged in similar activities, or operate in the same geographical
areas or industry sectors, so that their collective ability to meet contractual obligations is uniformly affected by
changes in economic, political or other conditions (see loans and advances to customers by industry table on
Note 11). The Entity uses a number of controls and measures to minimise undue concentration of exposure in
the group’s portfolios across industry, country and customer groups. These include portfolio and counterparty
limits, approval and review controls, and stress testing. Collateral and other credit enhancements.
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Credit quality

The five credit quality classifications defined below each encompass a range of more granular, internal credit
rating grades, as well as external rating.

Debt securities and other bills Lending
Quality classification External credit rating Internal credit rating
Strong A- and above CRR1 to CRR2
Good B8BB+ to BBB- CRR3
Satisfactory BB+ to B and unrated CRR4 to CRRS
Sub-standard B-toC . CRR6 to CRRS
Impaired Impaired CRR9 to CRR10

The five classifications below describe the credit quality of the Entity’s lending and derivatives. These
categories each encompass a range of more granular, internal credit rating grades assigned to corporate and
personal lending business.

'Strong': Exposures demonstrate a strong capacity to meet financial commitments, with negligible or low
probability of default and/or low levels of expected loss. Persona! accounts operate within product
parameters and only exceptionally show any period of delinquency.

'Good": Exposures require closer monitoring and demonstrate good capacity to meet financial
commitments, with low default risk. Personal accounts typically show only short periods of delinquency,
with any losses expected to be minimal following the adoption of recovery processes.

'Satisfactory': Exposures require closer monitoring and demonstrate an average to fair capacity to meet
financial commitments, with a moderate default risk. Personal accounts typically show only short periods
of delinquency, with any losses expected to be minor following the adoption of recovery processes.
'Sub-standard': Exposures require varying degrees of special attention and default risk is of greater
concern. Personal portfolio segments show longer delinquency periods of generally up to 90 days past due
and/or expected losses are higher due to a reduced ability to mitigate these through security realisation
or other recovery processes.

'Impaired": Exposures have been assessed, individually as impaired.

Neither past due nor impaired

Medium
Satis- Sub- Impairment

Strong Good factory Standard Impaired Allowances Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

At 31 Dec 2017
Cash and balances at central banks 16,316 - - - - - 16,316
Derivatives 5,356 4,270 - - - - 9,626
Loans and advances to banks 2,438,975 - - - - - 2,438,975
Loans and advances to customers 548,900 1,960,155 1,679,399 92,670 242,862 (49,503) 4,474,483

At 31 Dec 2016
Cash and balances at central banks 7,563 - - - - - 7,563
Derivatives 5,743 6,432 - - - - 12,175
Loans and advances to banks 855,429 - - - - - 855,429
Loans and advances to customers 542,465 1,926,621 1,744,236 95,883 300,246 (43,822) 4,565,629
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IV. Impaired loans and advances
Impaired loans and advances are those that meet any of the following criteria:

e  Wholesale loans and advances classified as Customer Risk Rating (‘CRR’) 9 or CRR 10. These grades are
assigned when the bank considers that either the customer is unlikely to pay its credit obligations in full,
without recourse to security, or when the customer is more than 90 days past due on any material credit
obligation to the Entity. '

® Retail loans and advances classified as Expected Loss (‘EL’) 9 or CRR 10. These grades are assigned to retail
loans and advances greater than 90 days past due unless individually they have been assessed as not
impaired.

Impaired loans and advances to customers by industry sector:

2017 2016
Individually  Collectively Individually  Collectively

d d Total assessed assessed Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Impaired loans & advances to customers
- personal . 122,457 - 122,457 153,465 - 153,465
- corporate and commercial 120,405 - 120,405 146,598 - 146,598
- financial - - - 183 - 183
As at 31 Dec 242,862 - 242,862 300,246 - 300,246

The existence of collateral has an effect when calculating impairment on individually assessed impaired loans.
When we no longer expect to recover the principal and interest due on a loan in full or in accordance with the
original terms and conditions, it is assessed for impairment. If exposures are secured, the current net
realisable value of the collateral will be taken into account when assessing the need for an impairment
allowance. No impairment allowance is recognised in cases where all amounts due are expected to be settled
in full on realisation of the security.

V. Renegotiated loans and forbearance

The Entity may renegotiate the terms and conditions of a loan for a number of reasons which include changing
market conditions, customer retention and other reasons not related to the credit condition of a customer.
Under certain circumstances, the Entity may renegotiate the terms and conditions of a loan in response to
actual or perceived financial difficulties of a customer; this practice of renegotiation for credit purposes is
known as forbearance.

A range of forbearance strategies are employed in order to improve the management of customer
relationships, maximise collection opportunities and, if possible, avoid default, foreclosure or repossession.
The policies and practices are based on criteria which, in the judgement of local management, indicate that
repayment is likely to continue.

Forbearance strategies include extended payment terms, a reduction in interest or principal repayments,
approved external debt management plans, debt consolidations, the deferral of foreclosure, and other forms
of loan modifications and re-ageing. These management policies and practices typically provide the customer
with terms and conditions that are more favourable than those provided initially. Such arrangements could
include cases where an account is brought up-to-date without full repayment of all arrears.
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Loan forbearance is only granted in situations where the customer has showed a willingness to repay the
borrowing and is expected to be able to meet the revised obligations. From this point forward, the Entity
discloses loan forbearance as ‘renegotiated loans’, which represent concessions granted which the Entity
would not normally consider as a result of financial difficulties of a customer.

The following table shows the Entity’s holdings of renegotiated loans and advances to customers by industry
sector and credit quality classification:

At 31 Dec At 31 Dec
2017 2016
Neither past Neither past
due nor due nor
impaired  Impaired Total impaired Impaired Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Retail 49,291 57,256 106,547 44,229 104,390 148,619
- Residential Mortgages 34,812 39,263 74,075 27,587 77,095 104,682
- Other personal 14,479 17,993 32,472 16,642 27,295 43,937
Commercial real estate 14,565 69,009 83,574 22,600 101,121 123,721
Corporate and commercial - 2,432 2,432 - 5,269 5,269
Financials - . - - - 181 181
Other 6,590 4,793 11,383 - 364 364
70,446 133,490 203,936 66,829 211,325 278,154
Impairment allowance on renegotiated loans (8,507) (26,181)
Renegotiated loans and advances as % of total gross :
loans (%) 4.5% 6.0%

VI. Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Entity follows guidelines as to the acceptability of specific classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation.
Whilst collateral is important in mitigating credit risk, it is the Entity's practice to lend on the basis of the
customer's ability to meet their obligations out of cash from resources rather than rely on the value of security
offered.

The principal collateral types are as follows:

¢ in the personal sector, mortgages over residential properties, cash and securities;

e in the commercial real estate sector, charges over the properties being financed; and

* inthe financial sector, charges over financial instruments such' as debt securities, bank guarantees and
equities in support of trading facilities. :

A summary of the loan book analysed by collateral type is provided below:

At 31 Dec 2017 2016

£'000 £'000
Other property* 745,961 1,206,539
Residential property . 2,188,172 2,044,974
Cash backed 502,260 261,762
Other** " 872,358 937,436
Unsecured 213,693 155,960
Gross loan and advances to customers . 4,522,444 4,606,671

*Other property is predominantly UK residential investment property and UK commercial investment property.

**QOther collateral includes charges over marketable investments such as stocks, shares and bonds, hold
covered guarantees and charges over music rights and other assets.
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Collateral held is analysed separately for commercial real estate, for other corporate and commercial and
financial (non-bank) lending and residential mortgage lending.

Commercial real estate loans and advances including loan commitments by level of collateral

2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Rated CRR1to 7
Not collateralised 6,821 11,410
Fully collateralised 1,079,107 1,267,110
Partially collateralised 1,477 4,855
- collateral value . I 915 | 2,515 |
Rated CRR 8 to 10
Not collateralised 332 384
Fully collateralised 112,682 147,738
LTV ratio:
- Less than 50% 10,414 10,222
- 51% t0 75% 37,761 120,050
- 76% to 90% 62,635 7,432
- 91% to 100% 1,872 10,034
Partially collateralised
greater than 100% LTV 8,470 5,391
-Collaterat value ] 5,242 | 3,475]

At 31 Dec 1,208,889 1,436,888

Other corporate, commercial and financial {non-bank) loans and advances including loan commitments by
level of collateral rated CRR/ EL 8 to 10 only.

2017 2016

£'000 £'000
Fully collateralised 4,689 5,751
LTV Ratio:
- Less than 50% 2,432 5,453
- 51% to 75% LTV 2,257 242
- 76% to 90% LTV - 56
- 91% to 100% LTV - -
At 31 Dec 4,689 5,751

Residential mortgage lending

The table below show residential mortgage lending including off-balance sheet loan commitments by level of
collateral. The LTV ratio is calculated as the gross on-balance sheet carrying amount of the loan and any off-
balance sheet loan commitment at the balance sheet date divided by the value of collateral. The value of
collateral is determined using professional valuations and house prices indices.
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2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Non-impaired loans and advances .
Fully collateralised 2,221,721 2,132,157
Less than 50% LTV 655,146 745,713
51% to 60% LTV 418,871 449,174
61% to 70% LTV 672,975 579,049
71% to 80% LTV 342,852 243,493
81% to 90% LTV . 113,300 91,945
91% to 100% LTV 18,577 22,783
Partially coliateralised
greater than 100% LTV 50,106 136,799
-Collateral value 46,525 | 106,552
Impaired loans and advances
Fully collateralised 69,712 95,123
Less than 50% LTV 13,476 31,573
51% to 60% LTV 14,740 12,741
61% to 70% LTV 11,712 22,061
71% to 80% LTV . 15,321 15,216
81% to 90% LTV 7,133 7,682
91% to 100% LTV 7,330 5,850
Partially collateralised
greater than 100% LTV 20,803 25,512
-Collateral value ’ [ 16,108] 20,472]
At 31 Dec 2,362,342 2,389,591

VIl. Impairment of loans and advances
The tables below analyses the loan impairment charges for the year and the impairment allowances
recognised for impaired loans and advances that are either individually assessed or collectively assessed, and

collectively impairment allowances on loans and advances classified as not impaired.

Movement in impairment allowances on loans and advances to customers

2017 2017 2016 2016
Individually Collectively Individually Collectively
assessed assessed assessed assessed
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At1)an 35,688 8,134 43,800 12,170
Amounts written off (4,940) - (7,865) -
Recoveries of amounts written off in previous years 6 - ©172 -
New allowances net of allowance
releases 12,304 {1,735) (1,386) (4,036)
Exchange and other movements (54) : - 3867 -

At 31 Dec 43,104 6,399 35,688 8,134
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b) Lliquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Entity does not have sufficient financial resources to meet obligations as they
fall due or will have access to such resources only at an excessive cost. The risk arises from mismatches in the
timing of cash flows. ‘

Approximately 87% of the bank’s asset base is sterling-based with the remainder mostly denominated in Euros
and US Dollars. The Entity funds its sterling asset base from a combination of capital resources, customer
accounts and short term borrowings from its intermediate parent Entity, HSBC Bank plc. Surplus balances in
other currencies are usually placed with HSBC Bank plc or other HSBC Entity entities.

Since 1 April 2013, the Entity is part of the Defined Liquidity Company (‘DLG’} of HSBC Bank plc. The Entity has
therefore no direct obligation to fulfil the liquidity requirement of the PRA. Instead, the liquid assets of the
Entity support the wider liquidity buffer of the DLG. The Entity is also part of the internal liquidity control and
management structure of HSBC Bank plc.

For risk monitoring purposes, management monitor the ratio of net liquid assets to customer accounts. Net
liquid assets are defined as the difference between liquid assets and liabilities falling due within three months.
Target and trigger liquidity ratios are set for the Entity by HSBC Bank plc.

The following is an analysis of undiscounted cash flows payable under various financial liabilities by remaining
contractual maturities at the balance sheet date:

Due within Due between Due between Due after
On demand 3 months  3-12 months 1-5 years 5 years Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Customer accounts 5,325,954 616,231 94,365 14,098 1,125 6,051,773
Financial guarantees - 7,059 17,070 - 365 24,494
Loan commitments 410,945 45,426 176,078 129,158 9,253 770,860
At 31 Dec 2017 5,736,899 668,716 287,513 143,256 10,743 6,847,127
Due within Due between Due between Due after
On demand 3 months  3-12 months 1-5 years S years Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Deposits by banks 48,399 - . - - - 48,399
Customer accounts 4,621,716 589,818 107,045 58,972 1,551 5,379,102
Financial guarantees 10 17,047 28,449 - 365 45,871
Loan commitments 224,752 37,766 246,502 78,416 8,732 596,168
At 31 Dec 2016 4,894,877 644,631 381,996 137,388 10,648 6,069,540
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¢) Market risk management

Market risk is the risk that movements in market factors including interest rates, foreign exchange rates or
equity and commodity prices will impact the Entity’s income or the value of its portfolios.

The Entity’s objective is to manage and control market rate exposures while maintaining a market profile
consistent with its risk appetite. :

The Entity manages market risk through risk limits approved by the HSBC Company Executive Committee and
adopted by the Entity’s Board. An independent risk unit-develops risk management policies and measurement
techniques, and reviews limit utilisation on a daily basis.

Disclosures on market price risk, foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk are provided below.
Market price risk

Market risk is the risk that movements in market factors, including foreign exchange rates and commodity
prices, interest rates, credit spreads and equity prices will reduce the Entity’s income or the value of its
portfolios.

The Entity uses Value at risk (‘VAR’) to monitor and limit market risk exposures. VAR is a technique that
estimates the potential losses on risk positions in a portfolio as a result of movement in market rates and
prices over a specified time horizon and to a given level-of confidence. The VAR model is based predominantly
on historical simulation. This model derives pl'ausible future scenarios from past series of recorded market
rates and prices, taking into account inter-relationships between different markets and rates such as interest
rates and foreign exchange rates.

VAR measures in the table below are calculated to a 99% confidence level and use a one-day holding period.

2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Value at Risk
At 31 Dec 48 76
Average 549 48
Minimum 17 32
Maximum 161 90

The nature of VAR models means that an increase in observed market volatility will lead to an increase in VAR
without any changes in the underlying positions. Although a valuable guide to risk, VAR should always be
viewed in the context of limitations. For example:

e the use of historical data as a proxy for estimating future events may not encompass all potentiai events,
particularly those which are extreme in nature;

- the use of one-day holding period assumes that all positions can be liquidated or the risks offset in one’
day;

e the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does not take into account losses that might occur
beyond this level of confidence.
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Foreign exchange risk

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities between balances denominated in sterling and those
denominated in other currencies.

Assets Liabilities 2017

£'000 £'000 £'000

Euro 473,981 (808,603) {334,622)
US dollars 515,513 (869,238) (353,725)
Sterling . 5,675,593 (4,886,227) 789,366
Others, each less than £150 million 72,908 (173,927) {101,019)
At 31 Dec 2017 6,737,995 (6,737,995) -
Assets Liabilities 2016

£'000 £'000 £'000

Euro 137,160 (273,212) {136,052)
US dollars 304,142 (897,621) {593,479)
Sterling 5,733,331 (4,928,196) 805,135
Others, each less than £150 million 69,741 {145,345) (75,604)

At 31 Dec 2016 - 6,244,374 (6.244,374) -

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is managed internally by monitoring the sensitivity of the fair value of the Entit{/’s assets and
liabilities to a 0.01% shift in yield curves (the present value of a basis point or ‘PVBP’). At 31 December 2017
the Entity’s risk as measured by PVBP was £13,045 (2016: £18,004). PVBP is the change in the present value of
future cash flows and not recognised as an immediate gain or loss in the Income Statement.

The PVBP of Interest Rate Swaps which have not qualified as Fair Value Hedges for the purposes of IAS 39
(Note 26) at 31 December 2017 was £1,580 (31 December 2016: £1,773).

The table below discloses the mismatch of the dates on which interest on financial assets and financial
liabilities are next reset to market rate on a contractual basis or, if earlier, the dates on which the instruments
mature as at 31 December 2017. Actual reset dates may differ from contractual dates owing to prepayments
and the exercise of options. In addition, contractual terms may not be representative of the behaviour of
financial assets and liabilities.
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31 Dec 2017

Assets

Loans & advances to banks
Loans & advances to customers
Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities

Customer accounts

Other liabilities
Shareholders’ equity
Total equity and liabilities

Notional value:
Interest rate swaps

Interest rate sensitivity gap

Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap

31 Dec 2016

Assets

Loans & advances to banks
Loans & advances to customers
Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities

Deposits by banks
Customer accounts
Other liabilities
Shareholders' equity
Total equity and liabilities

Notional value:
Interest rate swaps

Interest rate sensitivity gap

Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap

Not more Between Between Between Non-
than3 3and 6 6 months l1andS More than interest
months months and 1 year years 5 years bearing Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
2,438,975 - - - - - 2,438,975
845,445 2,187,379 40,369 1,066,231 384,417 (49,358) 4,474,483
63,385 - 7,421 - - 26,855 97,661
3,347,805 2,187,379 47,790 1,066,231 384,417 (22,503) 7,011,119
5,938,562 60,140 32,613 12,977 - 936 6,045,228
- - - - - 362,134 362,134
- - - - - 603,757 603,757
5,938,562 60,140 32,613 12,977 - 966,827 7,011,119
6,941 {4,238) (1,112) {1,591) - - -
(2,583,816) 2,123,001 14,065 1,051,663 384,417 (989,330) -
(2,583,816) (460,815) {446,750) 604,913 989,330 - -
Not more Between Between Between Non-
than 3 3and6 6 months land5 Morethan interest
months months  and 1 year years S years bearing Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
855,429 - - - - - 855,429
2,082,551 1,969,652 181,296 297,178 77,366 (42,414) 4,565,629
385,054 - 6,665 - - 430,864 822,583
3,323,034 1,969,652 187,961 297,178 77,366 388,450 6,243,641
48,399 - - - - - 48,399
5,207,771 39,072 65,551 54,480 - 1,290 5,368,164
- - - - - 113,852 113,852
- - - - - 713,226 713,226
5,256,170 39,072 65,551 54,480 - 828,368 6,243,641
163,045 - - (132,079) (30,966) - -
(1,770,091) 1,930,580 122,410 110,619 46,400 (439,918) -
(1,770,091} 160,489 282,899 393,518 439,918 - -
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A positive interest rate sensitivity gap exists where more assets than liabilities re-price during a given period.
Although a positive gap position tends to benefit net interest income in a rising interest rate environment, the
actual effect will depend on a number of factors, including the extent to which repayments are made earlier or
later than the contracted date and variations in interest rates within re-pricing periods and among currencies.
Similarly, a negative interest rate sensitivity gap exists where more liabilities than assets re-price during a
given period. In this case, a negative gap position tends to benefit net interest income in a declining interest
rate environment, but again the actual effect will depend on the same factors as for positive interest rate gaps,
as described above.

30 Legal proceedings and regulatory matters

The Entity is party to legal proceedings and regulatory matters in a number of jurisdictions arising out of its
normal business operations. Apart from the matters described below, the Entity considers that none of these
matters are material. The recognition of provisions is determined in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in Note 1. While the outcome of legal proceedings and regulatory matters is inherently uncertain,
management believes that, based on the information available to it, no provisions have been made in respect
of these matters as at 31 December 2017. Where an individual provision is material, the fact that a provision
has been made is stated and quantified. Any provision recognised does not constitute an admission of
wrongdoing or legal liability. It is not practicable to provide an aggregate estimate of potential liability for our
legal proceedings and regulatory matters as a class of contingent liabilities.

In August 2013, an action was brought in the High Court of Zimbabwe against the Entity and HSBC Bank Plc
claiming losses in respect of an alleged failure to respond to enquiries following a regulatory notification. This
action is ongoing. A claim against the Entity relating to the same facts was dismissed by the High Court of
England and Wales in 2012. '

In March 2014, an action was brought in the High Court of England and Wales against the Entity, HSBC Private
Bank (Monaco) SA and HSBC Holdings plc claiming a failure by the Entity and HSBC Holdings plc to investigate
properly allegations relating to the mis-selling of certain products by HSBC Private Bank {(Monaco) SA. The
court has dismissed the claim against HSBC Private Bank (Monaco) SA on jurisdictional grounds. The action
against HSBC Holdings plc is ongoing.

In September 2017, an action was brought in the High Court of England and Wales against the Entity and HSBC
Holdings plc alleging breach of contract in connection with certain deferred compensation arrangements. This
action is ongoing.

In July 2015 and November 2015 respectively, two actions were brought against the Entity in the High Court of
England and Wales seeking damages on various alleged grounds, including breach of duty by the Entity in the
provision of certain historic services relating to the participation by the claimants in certain film finance
transactions. These actions are ongoing.

It is possible that additional actions or investigations will be initiated against the Entity as a result of its historic
involvement in the provision of certain film finance related services.

Based on the facts currently known, it is not practicable to estimate the resolution of these matters, including
the timing or possible aggregate impact on the Entity, which could be significant.
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31 Related party transactions

a) Transactions with Directors and other Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel are defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for plannmg,
directing and controlling the.activities of the Entity and includes members of the Board of Directors.

Compensation of Key Management Personnel

The following represents the compensation for Directors and other Key Management Personnel of the Entity
in exchange for services rendered to the Entity for the period they served during the year.

2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Short-term employee benefits 1,650 1,267
Post-employment benefits . 38 56
Other long-term benefits 204 252
Share-based payments 568 483

Transactions, arrangements and agreements including Directors and other Key Management Personnel

There are no transactions which fall to be disclosed under 1AS24 'Related Party Disclosures' between the Entity .
and the Key Management Personnel.

Shareholdings, options and of securities of Directors and other Key Management Personnel

2017 2016
Number of HSBC Holdings plc shares held by Directors and other key management personnel 327,135 104,621
beneficially
b) Transactions with other related parties
Transactions detailed below include amounts due to/from HSBC Bank Plc.
2017 2016
Highest balance Balance at Highest balance Balance at
during the year’ 31 December* during the year' 31 December’
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Assets
Derivatives 8,810 2,970 11,707 4,166
Loans and advances to banks 2,437,047 2,437,047 949,297 851,920
Other assets 5,156 5,061 355,142 355,142
Liabilities 4
Derivatives 12,859 7,598 19,712 13,863
Other liabilities 273,277 273,277 11,433 8,473

1 The disclosure of the year-end balance and the highest balance during the year is considered the most meaningful information to represent transactions during the year.
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2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Income statement
Interest income 6,348 6,965
Interest expense 338 -
Fee income (102) 104
Fee expense 2,316 2,912
Other operating income 1,916 -
General and administrative expenses 5,600 22,065
Dividend expense 128,000 625,000
Transactions detailed below include amounts due to/from HSBC Bank (C.1.) Limited.
2017 2016
Highest balance Balance at Highest balance Balance at
duringtheyear' 31 December' during the year' 31 December’
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Assets
Other assets 9,008 6,393 7,881 7,881
Liabilities
Deposits by banks - - 441,732 -

1 The disclosure of the year-end balance and the highest balance during the year is considered the most meaningful information to represent transactions during the year.

2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Income statement
Interest income - 71
Interest expense - 283
Fee income 4,918 7,787
Other operating income 1,445 805
General and administrative expenses 30 87
Transactions detailed below include amounts due to/from Other Group Companies.
2017 2016
Highest balance Balance at Highest balance Balance at
during the Year' 31 December  during the Year® 31 December
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Assets :
Loans and advances to banks 7,946 1,928 71,532 3,078
Other assets 28,876 28,876 42,892 14,814
Liabilities
Subordinated amounts due - - 85,349 -
Other liabilities 40,025 38,636 25,950 15,797

1 The disclosure of the year-end balance and the highest balance during the year is considered the most meaningful information to represent transactions during the year.

63



HSBC Private Bank (UK) Limited

Notes on the Financial Statements

2017 2016

£'000 £'000
Income statement
Interest expense 71 351
Fee income 915 4,600
Fee expense 3,905 1,725
Other operating income 31,805 31,040
General and administrative expenses . 84,181 33,754

The above transactions were made in the ordinary course of business and on substantially the same terms,
including interest rates and security, as for comparable transactions with persons of a similar standing or,
where applicable, with other employees. The transactions did not involve more than the normal risk of
repayment or present other unfavourable features.

32 Parent undertakings

The ultimate parent undertaking and ultimate controlling party is HSBC Holdings plc which is the parent
undertaking of the largest group to consolidate these financial statements. HSBC Bank plc is the parent
undertaking of the smallest group to consolidate these financial statements.

The immediate parent undertaking is HSBC Bank plc. All companies are registered in England and Wales.
Copies of HSBC Holdings plc and HSBC Bank plc consolidated financial statements can be obtained from:

8 Canada Square

London E14 SHQ

www.hsbc.com

33 Events after the balance sheet date

There are no significant events after the balance sheet date.
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